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[These financial statements have been audited]
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
GENERAL INFORMATION

NATURE OF BUSINESS
Emalahleni Municipality is & local municipatity performing the functions as set out in the Constitution. {Act no 108 of 1996)

COUNTRY OF ORIGIN AND LEGAL FORM

Emalahleni Municipality is a South African Category B Municipality (L.ocal Municipality) as defined by the Municipal Structures Act.
{Act no 117 of 1998)

JURISDICTION
The Emalahleni Municipality includes the following towns and surrounding rural areas;

Dordrecht
Indwe
Lady Frere

MUNICIPAL MANAGER
Dr. S. W, Vatala

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
GP De Jager

REGISTERED OFFICE
Emalahleni Municipality; 37 Indwe Road; Lady Frere; 5410

AUDITORS
Office of the Auditor General

PRINCIPLE BANKERS
Standard Bank; 92 Cathcart RD; Queenstown; 5320

RELEVANT LEGISLATION

Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no 55 of 2003)
Division of Revenue Act

The Income Tax Act

Value Added Tax Act

Municipal Structures Act {Act no 117 of 1998)

Municipal Systems Act (Act no 32 of 2000)

Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations
Water Services Act (Act no 108 of 1997}

Housing Act {Act no 107 of 1997)

Municipal Property Rates Act (Act no 8 of 2004)
Electricity Act (Act no 41 of 1987}

Skilis Development Levies Act (Act no 9 of 1990)
Employment Equity Act (Act no 55 of 1898)
Unemgloyment Insurance Act (Act no 3C of 1966)

Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act no 75 of 1987)
Supply Chain Management Regutations, 2005
Coflective Agreements

Infrastructure Grants

SALBC Leave Regulations

AUDITOR - GENERAL
SCLITH AFRICA

3.0 Nov 2017
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COUNCHLORS

1 Nomveliso Nyukwanz

2 Dumisa Shadrack Kalolo

3 Patricia Lumka Mapete

4 Thandeka Gloria Kulashe

5 Nolitha Catherine Lali

8 Primrose Badikazi Twala

7 Sibha Liwani

8 Thobeka Daphne Sixishe

9 Nokwandisa Mildred Ziduli
10 Mcebisi Stephen Limba
11 Ncedisa Miyobile
12 Pleter Frederick Greyling
13 Michael Fumanekile Mthandeki
14 Mixotisi Peacemaker Oyiva
15 Rossenbarg Zolile Feni
16 Zenzile Dennis Mahola
17 Kwaaiman Mjezu
18 Thozama Mrwebi
19 Nolistern Kama
20 Xoleta Hendrick Njadu
21 Nomzi Mary Tyhulu
22 Siyabulela Bongo
23 Nentombizanele Flowerdale Koni
24 Sipo £rnest Zama
25 Nosibulelo Mavis Ngong
28 Linda Arnold Fatyeia
27 Zoyisile Given Moshane
28 Thembi Florence Mondile
29 Tandiwe Monica Ndlela
30 Nowandisile Nobantu Krags
31 Mncedis! Sydney Qamaoyi
32 Lizo Nelson Paul
33 Makesandile Makatesi
34 Cecil Hluphekile Bobotyane

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

MEMBERS OF THE EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

Mayor

Speaker

Executive Committee
Executive Committee
Councilior

Coungillor

Executive Committee
Councillor

Councillor

Executive Commitlee
Executive Commitiee
Councilior

Councillor

Counciller

Councillor

Counciilor

Counillor

Councilior

Councilior

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Counciller

Counciller

Caungciller

Counciilor

Coungillor

Councitlor

Councilior
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APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

| am responsible for the preparation of these annuat financial stalementis year ended 30 June 2017, which are sat out on
pages 1 o 88 in terms of Section 126 (1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which | have signad on behalf of the
Municipality. The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GRAP.

I acknowledge that | am uitimately responsible for the system of internal financial control and that the system of inlernal
caontrol provides reasonable assurance that the financial records can be relied on,

I have reviewed the Municipality's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2017 and is satisfiad that the Municipality can
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Municipality's financial statements,

| geriify that the remuneration of Counaillors and in-kind banafits are within tho uppor fimits of the framowork envisaged in
Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and
Local Government's determination in accordance with this Act.

== 30| [aer
DAS. W, Vatala Date !

ACCOUNTING OERIEER

I ALDITOR - GENERAL
B0 TH AFRICA

E 30 NOV 2017
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANGIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2017

NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Net Assets
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)
Non-Current Liabitities

l.ong-term Liabilities
Employee benefiis
Non-Current Provisions

Current Liabilities

Current Employee benefits

Provisions

Payables from exchange fransactions

Unspent Conditional Government Grants and Receipts
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities

Total Net Assets and Liabilities
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Property

Intangible Assets

Heritage Assets

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Operating l.ease Asset

VAT
Unpaid Conditicnal Government Grants and Receipts

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

Page 4

Notes

oW

N~ WU

10

11
12

13
14
15

16

2017 2016
R R
Restated
402,127,781 400,462,233
402,127,781 400,462,233
6,877,628 7,000,234
- 295,485
6,877,627 6,704,749
0 (0)
41,379,490 41,420,031
9,032,174 7,544,844
11,210,331 10,525,917
20,040,098 21,838,663
800,500 1,157,442
205,485 352,864
450,384,899 448,882,498
416,678,135 401,605,380
412,032 474 397,129,801
4,154,287 4,162,286
308,838 130,767
182,536 182,536
33,706,763 47,277,107
5,683,400 7,469,630
1,658,701 5,277,735
78,480 82,746
11,462,319 6,027,535
1,691,866 -
13,133,998 28,410,461
450,384,898 448,882,498

AUDITOR - GENERAL
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

REVENUE

Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions

Taxation Revenue
Property rates
Transfer Revenue

Government Grants and Subsidies - Capital
Government Grants and Subsidies

Other Revenue

Actuarial Gains

Reversal of Impairment

Reversal of contribution landfill site rehabilitation cost
Fines

Contributed Assets

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Service Charges

Rental of Facilities and Equipment
interest Earned - external investments
interest Earned - outstanding debtors
Licences and Permits

Agency Services

Gains on Sale of Fixed Assets

Other Income

Total Revenue

EXPEMDITURE

Employes related cosis
Remuneration of Counciilors

Debt impairment

Bad debts written-off

Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairments

Repairs and Maintenance

Finance Charges

Bulk Purchases

Contracted services

Other Operating Grant Expenditure
General Expenses

Loss on disposal of Property,Plant and Equipment

Total Expenditure
Discontinued Operations
NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Notes

17

18
18

18

20
20

21

22

23

24

24

25
10,11,12

26
27

28
29

46.1

2017 20186 2046 2018
Correction Previously
Actual Restated E:::;. i reported
R R R R
163,822,633 181,677,890 - 181,677,980
4,146,296 3,744,290 - 3,744,280
4,145,296 3,744,280 | - 3,744,290
158,245,205 175,804,259 - 175,804,259
26,170,100 30,614,700 - 30,614,700
132,075,105 145,189,559 - 145,189,559
1,431,131 2,129,440 2,129,440
1,278,548 164,588 - 164,568
- 635,644 - 635,644
- 988,718 888,718
115,919 81,510 - 81,510
36,664 259,000 - 258,000
24,963,938 22,572,086 - 22,572,086
14,798,087 12,036,187 - 12,038,187
727,068 771.148 771,148
2,312,651 3,846,124 - 3,846,124
4,708,774 4,632,959 4,632,959
1,072,974 444 382 444,382
66,627 58,723 58,723
490,000 - -
786,757 782,563 782563
188,786,571 204,250,076 - 204,250,076
68,175,192 54,543,120 888,551 53,656,569
11,184,958 10,884,836 - 10,884,836
2,327,348 4,398,435 (4,128,144) 8,526,579
5,079,096 4,128,144 4,128,144 -
2(,563,846 22,467,631 (333,984) 22,801,815
0 o (7,018,692) 7,019,682
1,363,144 622,053 - 622,053
12,948,236 13,480,217 (2,148,676) 15,628,853
6,282,007 9,846,987 5,024,551 4,822,446
14,583,595 28,906,458 - 28,906,458
45,369,448 42,463,054 910,001 41,553,053
1,244,154 8,831,118 - 8,831,118
187,121,023 260,572,061 (2,681,249) 203,253,310
2,265,864 2,265,864
1,665,548 5,943,87¢ 2,681,249 3,262,630
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Balance at 1 JULY 2015
Correction of errors

Restated Balance at 1 JULY 2015
Net Surplus for the year

Balance at 30 JUNE 2016
Net Surplus for the year

Balance at 30 JUNE 2017

Accumulated
Surplus/(Deficit) Total
R R

406,169,908 406,169,908
(11,654,554) (11,651,554)
394,518,354 394,518,354

5,943,879 5,943,879
400,462,233 400,462,233

1,665,548 1,665,548
402,127,781 402,127,781

Page &
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EMAL AHLENI MUNICIPALITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Ratepayers and other
Gaovernment - operating
Government - capital

Interest

Payments
Suppliers
Employees
Councillors
Finance charges

Gash generated hy operations

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds on disposal of PPE

Purchase of Heritage Assets

Purchase of intangible Assets
Net Cash from Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

lL.oans repaid

Net Cash from Financing Activities
NET {INCREASE} /DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Page 7

Notes

18
18

22

26
31

13

11

32

30 JUNE 2017
R

19,852,874
132,075,105
26,170,100
7,021,425

(92,501,055)

30 JUNE 2016
R

20,958,765
145,169,558
30,614,700
8,479,083

(101,137,107)

(57,758,860) (47,932,214)
(11,184,858) (10,884,835)
(1,363,144} (126,034)
21,611,479 45,167,017
(36,561,540) (48,577,807)
359,989
(282,540} (10,950)
(36,844,080) (48,228,768)
(352,862) (296,088)
(352,862) (296,088)
(15,285,464) (3,356,939)
28,419,461 31,776,400
13,133,998 28,419,461
(15,285,464) (3,356,939)
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1. ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES APPLIED IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and
are in accordance with historical cost convention unless specified otherwise.

The annual financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal
Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal
Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP
reporting framework , have been developed in accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of
GRAP 3 {Revised — March 2012) and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the
Accounting Standards Board.

The Municipality resolved to early adopt the following GRAP standards which have been
issued but are not effective yet.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied
except where an exemption has been granted, are disclosed below.

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsefting is
permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year's
financial statements, unless explicitly stated otherwise. The details of any changes in
accounting policies are explained in the relevant notes o the financial statements.

In terms of Directive 7; “The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of
GRAP" issued by the Accounting Standards Board, the Municipality applied deemed cost to
Investment Property, Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible where the acquisition
cost of an asset could not be determined.

PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Amounts reflected in the financial statements are in South African Rand and at actual
values. Financial values are rounded to the nearest one Rand.

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

These annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.4. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is
amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated, unless a standard of GRAP does
not require the restatements of comparative information. The nature and reason for the
reclassification is disclosed. Where material accounting errors have heen identified in the
current year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year
comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy
in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

1.5 AMENDED DISCLOSURE POLICY

Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary based on
the relevance of any such amendment to the format and presentation of the annual financial
statements. The principal amendments to matiers disclosed in the current financial
statements include errors.

1.6. MATERIALITY

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material i they could, individually or
collectively, influence the decision or assessments of users made on the basis of the annual
financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or
misstatements judged in the surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the
information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor. Materiality is
determined as 1% of total expenditure. This materiality is from management’s perspective
and does not correlate with the auditor's materiality.

1.7. PRESENTATION OF BUDGET INFORMATION

The presentation of budget information is prepared in accordance with GRAP 24 and based
on the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations format. The comparison of budget and
actual amounts are disclosed as separate additional financial statements, namely
Statements of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

Budget information is presented on the accrual basis and is based on the same period as the
actual amounts, i.e. 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. The budget information is therefore on a
comparable basis fo the actual amounts.

The comparable information includes the following:

o the approved and final budget amounts;
e actual amounts and final budget amounts;

Explanations for differences between the approved and final budget are included in the
Statements of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts.

Explanations for material differences between the final budget amounts and actual amounts
are included the Statements of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts. Material
differences are being defined by Management as 10% of a specific line-item with a minimum
of R1 million.

The disclosure of comparative information in respect of the previous period is not required in
terms of GRAP 24.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.8. STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting is effective from 1 April 2015. The implementation of
GRAP 18 is delayed, in terms of Directive 5, for municipalities for the 2015/16 financial

year.

The following GRAP standards have been issued but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Municipality:

Standard

Description

Effective Date

GRAP 20
(Original — June 2011)

Related Party Disclosure

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that an
Municipality's financial statements contains the
disclosures necessary io draw attention fo the
possibility that its financial position and surplus or
deficit may have been affected by the existence of
related parties and by transactions and outstanding
balances with such parties.

The Municipality resolved to formulate an accounting
policy based on the disclosure requirements as per
GRAP 20. The information is therefore included in
the financial statements.

Unknown

GRAP 32
{Original — Aug 2013)

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor

The objective of this Standard is o prescribe the
accounting for service concession arrangements by
the grantor and a public sector entity.

No significant impact is expected as the
Municipality’s current treatment is already in line with
the Standards treatment.

Unknown

GRAP 105
{Original — Nov 2010)

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Under
Common Control

The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor
in a transfer of functions between entities under
common control.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate in such business transactions
and no such transactions or events are expected in
the foreseeable fufure.

1 April 2015

GRAP 106
{Original — Nov 2010)

Transfer of Functions Between Entities Not
Under Common Control

The objective of this Standard is tc establish
accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of

1 April 2015
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EMALAHLENT MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

functions between entities not under common
control.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate In such business transactions
and no such transactions or evenis are expected in
the foreseeable future.

GRAP 107 Mergers 1 April 2015

(Original — Nov 2010) The objective of this Standard is to establish
accounting principies for the combined entity and
cambining entities in a merger.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not participate in such business transactions
and no such transactions or events are expected in
the foreseeable future.

GRAP 108 Statutory Receivables Unknown

{Original — Sept 2013) | The objective of this Standard is to prescribe
accounting requirements for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
statutory receivables.

The Municipality has revolved to adopt the principies
as set out in GRAP 108 fo formulate its own
accounting policy.

IGRAP 11 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities (SPE) 1 April 2015

The objective of this Interpretation of the Standard is
to prescribe under what circumstances an entity
should consolidate a SPE.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not have any SPE's at this stage.

IGRAP 12 Jointly Controlled  Entities non-monetary | 1 April 2015
contributions

The objective of this Interpretation of the Standard is
to prescribe the treatment of profit/loss when an
asset is sold or contributed by the venturer fo a
Jointly Controlled Entity (JCE).

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality
does not have any JCE's at this stage.

These standards, amendments and interpretations will not have a significant impact on
the Municipality once implemented.

1.9. LEASES

1.9.1 Municipality as Lessee
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.9.2

1.10.

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
associated with ownership of an asset are transferred to the Municipality. Property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets (excluding licensing agreements for such items as
motion picture films, video recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights)
subject to finance lease agreements are initially recognised at the lower of the asset's fair
value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liabilities are initially recognised at the inception of the lease and are measured as the
sum of the minimum lease payments due in terms of the lease agreement, discounted for
the effect of interest. In discounting the lease payments, the Municipality uses the
interest rate that exactly discounts the lease payments and unguaranteed residual value
to the fair value of the asset plus any direct costs incurred.

Subsedquerit to inhitial recoghition, the leased assets are accounted for in accorddrice with
the stated accounting policies applicable to property, plant and equipment, investment
property or intangibles assets. The lease liability is reduced by the lease payments,
which are allocated between the lease finance cost and the capital repayment using the
effective interest rate method. Lease finance costs are expensed when incurred. The
accounting policies relating to de-recognition of financial instruments are applied to lease
payables.

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.
Operating lease rentals are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined expenses and actual payments
made will give rise to a liability, The Municipality recognises the aggregate benefit of
incentives as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term, on a straight-line basis
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the lesses’s
benefit from the use of the leased asset.

Municipality as Lessor

Under a finance lease, the Municipality recognises the lease payments to be recsived in
terms of a lease agreement as an asset (receivable). The receivable is calculated as the
sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus any unguaranteed residual
accruing to the Municipality, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The
receivable is reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments received, with the
interest portion being recognised as interest revenue on a time proportionate basis. The
accounting policies relating to de-recognition and impairment of financial instruments are
applied 1o lease receivables.

Operating leases are those leases that do not fall within the scope of the above definition.
Operating lease revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. The difference between the straight-lined revenue and actua!l payments
received will give rise to an asset. The Municipality recognises the aggregate cost of
incentives as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term, on a straight-line basis
unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern over which the
benefit of the leased asset is diminished.

UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Conditional government grants are subject to specific conditions. [f these specific
conditions are not met, the monies received are repayable.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.11.

1.12.

Unspent conditional grants are financial liabilities that are separately reflected on the
Statement of Financial Position. They represent unspent government grants, subsidies
and contributions from the public.

This liability always has o be cash-backed. The following provisions are set for the
creation and utilisation of this creditor:

= Unspent conditional grants are recognised as a liability when the grant is received.

*  When grant conditions are met an amount equal to the conditions met are
transferred to revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

e  The cash which backs up the creditor is invested as individual investment or part of
the general investments of the Municipality until it is utilised.

e Interest earned on the investment is treated in accordance with grant conditions. 1f
it is payable to the funder it is recorded as part of the creditor. If it is the
Municipality’s interest, it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

UNPAID CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS

Unpaid conditional grants are assets in terms of the Framework that are separately
reflected on the Statement of Financial Position. The asset is recognised when the
Municipality has an enforceable right to receive the grant or if it is virtually certain that it
will be received based on that grant conditions have been met. They represent unpaid
government grants, subsidies and contributions from the public.

The following provisions are set for the creation and utilisation of grant receivables:

¢ Unpaid conditional grants are recognised as an asset when the grant is receivable.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Municipality has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required fo setile the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the provision can be made. Provisions are reviewed at reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of future cutflows of resources. Where
the effect is material, non-current provisions are discounted to their present value using a
discount rate that reflects the market's current assessment of the time value of money,
adjusted for risks specific to the liability.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in
the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.
Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a
provision. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present
obligation under an onerous contract is recegnised and measured as a provision.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following criteria over and
above the recognition criteria of a provision have been met:
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.13.

1.13.1

(a) The Municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:

¢ the business or part of a business concerned;

e the principal locations affected,

¢ the location, function and approximate number of employees who will be
compensated for terminating their services;

« the expenditures that will be undertaken; and

s when the plan will be implemented.

(b} The Municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry
out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is de-recognised.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans.

Post-Retirement Medical Obligations

The Municipality provides post-retirement medical benefits by subsidizing the medical aid
contributions of certain retired staff according to the rules of the medical aid funds.
Coungcil pays 60% as contribution and the remaining 40% are paid by the members. For
retired members, Council pays 70% as contribution and the remaining 30% are paid by
the members. The entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional on the employee
remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service
period. The preseni value of the defined benefit liability is actuarially determined in
accordance with GRAP 25 — Employee benefits (using a discount rate applicable to high
quality government bonds). The plan is unfunded.

These contributions are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution. The liability was
calculated by means of the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. The liability in
respect of current pensioners is regarded as fully accrued, and is therefore not split
between a past (or accrued) and future in-service element. The liability is recognised at
the fair value of the obligation. Payments made by the Municipality are set-off against the
liability, including notional interest, resulting from the valuation by the actuaries and are
charged against the Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits upon
valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions, is charged or credited to the Statement of Financial Performance

20



EMALAHLENY MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

1.13.2

1.13.3

1.13.4

1.13.5

1.13.6

in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically by independent
qualified actuaries.

Long Service Awards

Long service awards are provided io employees who achieve certain pre-determined
milestones of service within the Municipality. The Municipality’s obligation under these
plans is valued by independent qualified actuaries annually and the corresponding liability
is raised. Payments are set-off against the [iability, including notional interest, resulting
from the valuation by the actuaries and are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance as employee benefits upon valuation.

Actuatial galng and losses ariging fom the expetlence adjustmentd and chariges in
actuarial assumptions, is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the
period that it occurs. These obligations are valued periodically, unless circumstances
change significantly in which case it is done annually, by independent qualified actuaries.

Staff Leave accrued

Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability is
based on the total amount of leave days due to employees at year-end and also on the
total remuneration package of the employee.

Accumulating leave is carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current
period’'s entitiement is not used in full. All unused leave will be paid out to the specific
employee at the end of that employee’s employment term. Unused leave is being capped
at 48 days.

Accumulated leave is vesting.

Staff Bonuses Accrued

Liabilities for staff bonuses are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability at
year end is based on bonus accrued at year-end for each employee.

Provision for Performance Bonuses

A provision, in respect of the liability relating to the anticipated costs of performance
bonuses payable to Section 57 employees, is recognised as it accrue to Section 57
employees.  Municipal entities’ performance bonus provisions are based on the
employment contract stipulations as well as previous performance bonus payment
trends.

Pension and retirement fund obligations

The Municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and councillors.

Defined ceoniribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal
or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient

assets to pay all employee benefits relating o emplayee service in the current and prior
periods.
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1.13.7

1.14.

1.15.1

The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year they become payable.

The defined benefit funds, which are administered on a provincial basis, are actuarially
valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are
recovered through Ilump sum payments or increased future contributions on a
propartional basis to all participating municipalities. The contributions and lump sum
paymenis are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year they
become payable. Sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting
for a multi-employer plan. As a result, defined benefit plans have been accounted for as
if they were defined contribution plans,

Other Short-term Employee Benefits

When an empioyee has rendered service to the Municipality during a reporting period,
the Municipality recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

e as a liahility {accrued expense), afier deducting any amount already paid. If the
amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the
Municipality recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) o the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a
cash refund; and

= as an expense, unless ancther Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised to the cost of that asset.

The amount of borrowing costs that the Municipality capitalises during a period does not
exceed the amount of borrowing costs it incurred during that period. The Municipality
ceases the capitalisation of borrowing costs when substantially all the activities to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs incurred
other than on qualifying assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance when incurred.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Initial Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure
assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected fo be used during more than one
year. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if,
and only if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with
the item will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the item can be
measured reliably. Hems of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised as
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1.15.2

1.15.3

assets on acquisition date and are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the cost. The cost also includes the necessary costs of dismantling and
removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is focated.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, they are accounted for as separaie items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Where an asset is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a
noh-exchange transaction), the cost 1s deeimed to be equal to the fair valie of that asset
on the date acqguired.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acqguired in exchange for a non-
monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary
assets, the asseis acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). It the acquired
item’s fair value is not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the
asset(s) given up.

Major spare parts and servicing equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when
the Municipality expects to use them during more than one period. Similarly, if the major
spare paris and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, ifems of property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Where the Municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset
being replaced and capitalises the new component. Subsequent expenditure incurred on
an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the asset.

Depreciation and Impairment

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it fo be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:
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1.15.4

1.15.5

Asset Class Asset Sub-grouping Useful Life (Yrs)
Land None Indefinite
Buildings Nane 5-100
Infrastructure Landill Site 10-100
Electricity 1-75
Water 12182
Roads =120
Security Measures i-50
Community Assets Cemetries & Fencing 1-100
Halls 5 100
Library 5- 106
Buildings Other 5-100
Parks and Gardens 1-50
Sportfields and Stadia 1-100
Leased Asset None 1-10
Heritage Neane Indefinite
Other Assets Comgputer Hardware 1-25
Plant and Equipment 1-25
Furniture and Other Office Equipment 1-40
Markets 1-35
Vehicles and Specialised Vehicles 1-55

Property, plant and eguipment are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of
the carrying value over the recoverable amount,

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been
recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

De-recognition

items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed or
when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of
the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying value and is recoegnised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Land and buildings and Other Assets — application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. For Land and Buildings the fair value as determined by a valuator was used
in order to determine the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010. For Other Assets the
depreciation cost method was used to establish the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.
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1.16.

1.16.1

1.16.2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-menetary asset without physical substance.
An asset meets the identifiability criterion in the definition of an intangible asset when it:

e s separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from the Municipality and
sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with
a related contract, identifiable asset of liability, regardless of whether the
Municipality intends to do so; or

 arises from binding arrangements from contracts, regardless of whether those
rights are transferable or separable from the Municipality or from other rights and
obligations.

The Municipality recognises an intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only
when it is probable that the expected future econcmic benefits or service potential that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Municipality and the cost or fair value of the
asset can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to strict recognition criteria before they
are capitalised. Research expendilure is never capitalised, while development
expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:

e the Municipality intends to complete the intangible asset for use or sale;

e it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset;

o the Municipality has the resources to complete the project;

e it is probable that the Municipality will receive future economic benefits or service
potential; and

e the Municipality can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary
assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value (the cost). [f the acquired iem’s fair value is not
determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairments losses. The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the

useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not
amortised but is subject to an annual impairment tast.
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1.16.3 Amortisation and Impairment

1.16.4

1.16.5

1.17.1

Amortisation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of intangible assets over its
estimated useful lives using the straight line method. Amortisation of an asset begins
when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Components of asseis that are
significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are amortised
separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are
reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated
useful lives:

Intangible Assets Years
Computer Software 2-10
Computer Software Licenses 2-10

De-recognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost (Directive 7)

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. For Intangible Assets the depreciated replacement cost method was used
to establish the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Initial Recognition
Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only when:

e it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are
associated with the investment property will flow to the Municipality, and

e the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably,

Investment property includes property (land cor a building, or part of a building, or both
fand and buildings held under a finance lease) held to earn rentals andfor for capital
appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or
supply of goods or services, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations.
Property with a currently undetermined use, is also classified as investment property.

At initial recognition, the Municipality measures investment property at cost including
transaction costs once it meets the definition of investment property. However, where an
investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it
acquired the investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at
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1.17.2

1.17.3

1.17.4

1.17.5

1.18.

1.18.1

the date of acquisition. The cost of self-constructed investment property is measured at
cost.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.
For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Municipality accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

Subsequernit to initial recognition, items of ifivéstinent property are measured at cost less
accumulaied depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Depreciation and Impairment — Cost Model

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation of an asset begins when it is
available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Components of assets that
are significant in relation to the whole asset and that have different useful lives are
depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment Property Years

Buildings 20 - 100

De-recognition

Investment property is derecognised when it is disposed or when there are no further
economic benefits expected from the use of the investment property. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment property is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost - Directive 7

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2009. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be

determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was used in order to determine
the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.

HERITAGE ASSETS
Initial Recognition
A heritage asset is defined as an asset that has a cultural, environmental, historical,

natural, scientific, technological or artistic significance and is held and preserved
indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations.
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1.18.2

1.18.3

1.18.4

1.18.5

1.19.

1.19.1

A heritage asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the
Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

A heritage asset that qualifies for recognition as an asset, is measured at its cost. Where
a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is deemed to be
its fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent Measurement — Cost Model

After recognition as an asset, heritage assets are carried at its cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation and Impairment
Heritage assets are not depreciated

Heritage assets are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the carrying value
over the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been
recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

De-recognition

Heritage assets are derecognised when it is disposed or when there are no further
economic benefits expected from the use of the heritage asset. The gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying value of the heritage asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Application of deemed cost - Directive 7

The Municipality opted to take advantage of the transitional provisions as contained in
Directive 7 of the Accounting Standards Board, issued in December 2008. The
Municipality applied deemed cost where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be
determined. The fair value as determined by a valuator was used in order to determine
the deemed cost as on 1 July 2010.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash-generating assefs

Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating a
commercial return.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an

asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Municipality estimaies the asset’s recoverable amount.
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in assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:

(a) External sources of information

o During the period, an asset's market value has declined significantly more
than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use.

e  Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have taken
place during the period, or will take place in the near future, in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
Municipality operates or in the market to which an asset is dedicated.

o Market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have
increased during the period, and those increases are likely to affect the
discount rate used in calculating an asset's value in use and decrease the
asset's recoverable amount materially.

(b) Internal sources of information
o Evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.

o  Significant changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality have taken
place during the period, or are expected fo take place in the near future, in
the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is expected to
he used. These changes include the asset becoming idle, plans to
discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, plans to
dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, and reassessing
the useful life of an asset as finite rather than indefinite.

e  Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic
performance of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected.

The re-designation of assets from a cash-generating asset to a non-cash generating
asset or from a non-cash-generating asset to a cash-generating asset shall only ocour

when there is clear evidence that such a re-designation is appropriate. A re-designation,
by itself, does not necessarily trigger an impairment test or a reversal of an impairment
loss. Instead, the indication for an impairment test or a reversal of an impairment loss
arises from, as a minimum, the indications listed above.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used.
Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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1.19.2

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less its
residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recoghised in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

Non-cash-generating assefs
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Municipality estimates the asset’s recoverabie service amount.

In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the
Municipality considers the following indications:

(a) External sources of information

¢« Cessation, or near cessation, of the demand or need for services provided
by the asset.

e  Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period or will take place in the near future, in the
technological, legal or government policy environment in which the
Municipality operates.

(b} Internal sources of information
s Evidence is available of physical damage of an asset.

¢ Significant long-term changes with an adverse effect on the Municipality
have taken place during the period, or are expected to take place in the near
future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, an asset is used or is
expected to be used. These changes include the asset becoming idle, plans
to discontinue or restructure the operation to which an asset belongs, or
plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date.

s A decision to halt the construction of the asset before it is complete or in a
usable condition.

o Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the service
performance of an asset is, or will be, significantly worse than expected.
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An asset's recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. If the recoverable service amount of an asset
is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable service amount. That reduction is an impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

The value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset's
remaining service potential. The present value of the remaining service potential of the
asset is determined using any cne of the following approaches, depending on the nature
of the asset in question:

e depreciation replacement cost approach - the present value of the remaining
service potential of an asset is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of
the asset. The replacement cost of an asset is the cost to replace the asset's gross
service potential. This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used condition.
An asset may be replaced either through reproduction (replication} of the existing
asset or through replacement of its gross service potential. The depreciated
replacement cost is measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the
asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of
such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

e  restoration cost approach - the cost of restoring the service potential of an asset to
its pre-impaired level. Under this approach, the present value of the remaining
service potential of the asset is determined by subtracting the estimated restoration
cost of the asset from the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential
of the asset before impairment. The latter cost is usually determined as the
depreciated reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower.

e service unit approach - the present value of the remaining service potential of the
asset is determined by reducing the current cost of the remaining service potential
of the asset before impairment, to conform with the reduced number of service
units expected from the asset in its impaired state. As in the restoration cost
approach, the current cost of replacing the remaining service potential of the asset
before impairment is usually determined as the depreciated reproduction or
replacement cost of the asset before impairment, whichever is lower.

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assef in an arm's
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard of GRAP. Any
impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation decrease in
accordance with that Standard of GRAP.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If any such indication exists, the Municipality estimates the recoverable
service amouni of that asset.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used {o determine the asset's recoverable service amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increased carrying amount
of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no
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1.20.

1.20.1

1.20.2

1.21.

1.21.1

impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. Such a reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

INVENTORIES

Initial Recognition

inventories comprise of current assets held for sale, consumption or distribution during
the ordinary course of business. Inventories are recognised as an asset if, and only if, i
is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the tem will
flow to the Municipality, and the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.
inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price,
plus non-recoverable taxes, transport costs and any other costs in bringing the
inventories to their current location and condition. Where inventory is manufactured,
constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads
used during the manufacturing process.

Where inventory is acquired by the Municipality for no or nominal consideration (i.e. a
non-exchange transaction), the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of the item on
the date acquired.

Subsequent Measurement

Inventories, consisting of consumable stores, raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value unless they are to
be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they are measured at the lower of
cost and current replacement cost. Redundant and slow-moving inventories are
identified and written down. Differences arising on the valuation of inventory are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year in which they arose.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories arising from an increase in
net realisable value or current replacement cost is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCUrs.

The carrying amount of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period that the
inventory was sold, distributed, written off or consumed, unless that cost qualifies for
capitalisation to the cost of another asset.

The basis of allocating cost to inventory items is the weighted average method.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments recognised on the Statement of Financial Position include
receivables (both from exchange transactions and non-exchange transactions), cash and
cash equivalents, annuity loans and payables (both form exchange and non-exchange
transactions) and non-current investments. The future utilization of Unspent Conditional
Grants is evaluated in order to determine whether it is treated as financial instruments.

Initial Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the Municipality becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument at fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. If finance charges in
respect of financial assets and financial liabilities are significantly different from similar
charges usually obtained in an open market transaction, adjusted for the specific risks of
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1.21.2

1.21.2.1

the municipality, such differences are immediately recognised in the period it occurs, and
the unamortised portion adjusted over the period of the loan transactions.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are categorised according fo their nature as either financial assets at fair
value, financial assets at amortised cost or financial assets at cost. Financial liabilities
are categorised as either at fair value or financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. The
subsequent measurement of financial assets and Habilities depends on this
categorisation.

Receivables

Receivables are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

For amounis due from debtors carried at amortised cost, the Municipality first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or
financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments (more than 20 days
overdue). If the Municipality determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics

and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is ohjective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount based on the criginal effective interest rate of the
asset. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Municipality. if, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, if material. If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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1.21.2.2

1.21.2.3

1.21.2.4

Payables and Annuity Loans

Financial liabilities consist of payables and annuity loans. They are categorised as
financial liabilities held at amortised cost, and are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest rate, which
is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Cash includes cash on hand (including petty cash) and cash with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments, readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of
three mioniths or less and are subject o an insignificant risk of change in value. For
the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand, highly liquid deposits and net of bank overdrafts. The Municipality
categorises cash and cash equivalents as financial assets carried at amortised cost.

Bank overdrafis are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank
overdraft are expensed as incurred. Amounts owing in respect of bank overdrafts
are categorised as financial liabilities carried at amortised cost.

Non-Current Investments

Investments which include investments in municipal entities and fixed deposits
invested in registered commaercial banks, are stated at amortised cost.

Where investments have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the
impairment loss, which is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period that the impairment is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

The carrying amounts of such investments are reduced to recognise any decline,
other than a temporary decline, in the value of individual investments.

1.21.3 De-recognition of Financial Instruments

1.21.3.1

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

« the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the assst
or has assumed an obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Municipality has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Municipality has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Municipality has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor
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1.21.3.2

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor tfransferred control of
the asset, the old asset is derecognised and a new asset is recognised to the extent
of the Municipality’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Municipality could be required to repay.

When continuing involvernent takes the form of a wiitten and/or purchased option
(including a cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the
extent of the Municipality's continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred
asset that the Municipality may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put
optien (including a cash settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Municipality's continuing involvement is fimited to the
lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial Liabilities

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial fability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

1.21.4 Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liahilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1.22

STATUTORY RECEIVABLES

Statutory receivables arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means and
require settlement by another entity in cash or another financial asset. Statutory
receivables can arise from both exchange and non-exchange transactions.

1.22.1

Initial Recognition

Statutory receivables are recognised when the related revenue is recognised.

1.22.2

Measurement

The Municipality initially measures the statuory receivables at their transaction amount.
The Municipality measure statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost
method. Under the cost method, the initial measurement of the receivable is changed
subsequent to reflect any:

{a) interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable;
(b} impairment losses; and

{c) amounts derecognised.
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1.22.3

1.23.

1.23.1

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a
statutory receivable may be impaired. If there is an indication that a statutory receivable
may be impaired, the Municipality measures the impairment loss as the difference
between the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the carrying
amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the carrying amount of the
statutory receivable is reduced, through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. [n estimating the future
cash flows, the Municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash flows that it
will receive in future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is
material, the Municipality discounts the estimated future cash flows using a rate that
reflects the current risk free rate and any risks specific to the statufory receivable for
which the fuilre cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there
has been a change in the estimates used since the last impairment loss was recognised,
or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows. Any previously recognised
impairment loss is adjusted by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of any
adjustment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

The Municipality derecognises a statutory receivable when:

{a) the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived;

{b} the Municipality transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the receivable; or

{c) the Municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the receivable, has transferred control of the receivable to ancther party
and the other party has the practical ability fo sell the receivable in its entirety to an
unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the
Municipality:

(i) derecognise the receivable; and
(if) recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

REVENUE
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Municipality
received revenue from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in
exchange. Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the
extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as an asset and there
is no liability to repay the amount.

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the
resources that have been transferred, meet the criteria for recognition as an asset. A
corresponding liability is recognised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is
conditional. The liability is transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached fo
the grant are met. Grants without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue
when the asset is recognised.
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Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlement to this revenue
arises. At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised. If the
Municipality does not enforce its obligation to collect the revenue, this would be
considered as a subsequent event. Collection charges are recognised when such
amounts are legally enforceable. Rebates and discounts are offset against the related
revenue, in terms of iGRAP 1, as there is no iniention of collecting this revenue.

Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time proportionate basis as an
exchange transaction.

Revenue from public contributions and donations is recognised when all conditions
associated with the contribution have been met or where the contribution is to finance
properly, plant and equipment, when such items of property, plant -and equipment
qualifies for recognition and first becomes available for use by the Municipality. Where
public contributions have been received, but the Municipality has not met the related
conditions, it is recognised as an unspent public coniribution (liability}.

Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are recognised
when it can be measured reliably and is not being offset against the related expenses of
repairs or renewals of the impaired assets.

Contributed property, plant and equipment is recognised when such items of property,
plant and equipment qualifies for recognition and become available for use by the
Municipality.

All unclaimed deposits are initially recognised as a liability until 12 months expires, when
all unclaimed deposits into the Municipality's bank account will be treated as revenue.
Historical patterns have indicated that minimal unidentified deposits are reclaimed after a
pericd of twelve months. This assessment is performed annually at 30 June. Therefore
the substance of these transactions indicate that even though the prescription period for
unclaimed monies is legally three years, it is reasonable to recognised all unclaimed
monies older than twelve months as revenue. Although unclaimed deposits are
recognised as revenue after 12 months, the Municipality still keep record of these
unclaimed deposits for three years in the event that a party should submit a claim after 12
months, in which case it will be expensed.

Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
is based on legislated procedures, including those set out in the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003) and is recognised when the recovery thereof from
the respensible councillors or officials is virtually certain.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, a Municipality recognises an asset, it
also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair value
as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a
liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of
the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the
reduction in the liability will be recognised as revenue.
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1.23.2 Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Municipality
directly in return for services rendered or goods sold, the value of which approximates the
consideration received or receivable.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have
been satisfied:

e  The Municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods.

&  The Municipality retains neither conlinuing manggerizl involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

¢  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

= It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the Municipality.

» The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

At the time of initial recognition the full amount of revenue is recognised where the
Municipality has an enforceable legal obligation fo collect, unless the individual
collectability is considered to be improbable. If the Municipality does not successfully
enforce its cbligation to collect the revenue this would be considered a subsequent event.

Service charges relating to electricity is based on consumption and a basic charge as per
Council resolution. Meters are read on a monthly basis and are recognised as revenue
when invoiced. Where the Municipality was unable to take the actual month's reading of
certain consumers, a provisional estimate of consumption for that month will be created.
The provisional estimates of consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced.
Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in
which meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the
invoicing period.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards is recognised at the point of
sale. It is estimated that pre-paid electricity is consumed within 5 to 7 days after date of
purchase. The pre-paid etectricity sold, but not consumed yet at year-end is disclosed as
under Payables from Exchange Transactions in the Statement of Financial Position,

Service charges relating fo refuse removal are recognised on an annual basis in advance
by applying the approved tariff to each property that has improvements. Tariffs are
determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on the
recorded number of refuse points per property.

[nterest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised cn a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease agreement.

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when

the relevant service is rendered by applying the relevant tariff. This includes the issuing
of licences and permits.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when substantially all the risks and
rewards in those goods are passed io the consumer.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:
e  Substantially all the risks and rewards in those goods are passed to the consumer;
and

o The municipality seizes managerial involvement and control of the goods; and
e  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and

s |t is probable fhat economic benefits of service potential associated with the
transaction will flow to the municipality; and

e  The costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

Revenue arising out of situations where the Municipality acts as an agent on behalf of
another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of any fee or commission payable to
the Municipality as compensation for executing the agreed services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

The amount of revenue arising on a transaction is usually determined by agreement
between the Municipality and the purchaser or user of the asset or service. It is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable taking into account the
amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the Municipality.

In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the
amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents received or receivable.

However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the
consideration may be less than the nominal amount of cash received or receivable. When
the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the
consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of
interest. The imputed rate of interest is the more clearly determinable of either:

¢  The prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a simitar credit rating;

= A rate of interest that discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current
cash sales price of the goods or services.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is
recognised as interest revenue.

When goods or services are exchanged or swapped for goods or services which are of a
similar nature and value, the exchange is not regarded as a transaction that generates
revenue. When goods are sold or services are rendered in exchange for dissimilar goods
or services, the exchange is regarded as a transaction that generates revenue. The
revenue is measured at the fair value of the goods or services received, adjusted by the
amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When the fair value of the goods or
services received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value
of the goods or services given up, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash
equivalents transferred.
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1.24.

RELATED PARTIES

The Municipality resolved to formulate an accounting policy based on the disclosure
requirements as per GRAP 20 - "Related Party Disclosures”.

A related party is a person or an entity:

«  with the ability to control or jointly control the other party,
s« or exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa,
= or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

The following are regarded as related parties of the Municipality:

(a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Municipality if
that person:

has control or joint control over the Municipality.

has significant influence over the Municipalities. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
Municipality.

is a member of the management of the Municipality or its controlling entity.

(b) An entity is related to the Municipality if any of the following conditions apply:

the entity is a member of the same Municipality (which means that each
controlling entity, controlled entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity {(or an associate
or joint venture of a member of an Municipality of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint veniures of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Municipality or an entity related to the Municipality. If the reperting
entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity.
the entity is controlled or jointly confrolled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in {a) has significant influence over that entity or is 2
member of the management of that entity (or its controlling entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by that person in their dealings with the
Municipality. A person is considered to be a close member of the family of another
person if they:

(a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage, or
(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal consanguinity or
affinity.
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1.25.

1.28.

Management {formerly known as “Key Management") includes all persons having the
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Municipality, including:

(a) all members of the governing body of the Municipality;

(b} a member of the governing body of an Municipality who has the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality;

{¢) any key advisors of a member, or sub-committees, of the governing body who has
the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controling the activities
of the Municipality; and

(d) the senior management team of the Municipality, including the chief executive
officer or permanent head of the Municipality, unless already included in (a).

Management personnel include:

(a) All directors or members of the governing body of the Municipality, being the
Executive Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Speaker and members of the Mayoral Committee.

{b) Other persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the reporting Municipality being the Municipal Manager,
Chief Financial Officer an all other managers reporting directly to the Municipal
Manager or as designated by the Municipal Manager.

Remuneration of management inciudes remuneration derived for services provided to the
Municipality in their capacity as members of the management team or employees.
Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Municipality for services in any capacity
other than as an employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of
remuneration. Remuneration of management excludes any consideration provided solely
as a reimbursement for expenditure incurred by those persons for the benefit of the
Municipality.

The Municipality operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities
directly or indirectly owned by the South African government. As a result of the
Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only
parties within the same sphere of government will be considered to be related parties.
Only transactions with such parties which are not at arm’s length and not on normal
commercial terms are disclosed.

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is
not in terms of the conditions of an allocation received from ancther sphere of
government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in a form of a grant that is not
permitted in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003).
Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense (measured at actual cost
incurred} in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, It is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular  expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act (Act No. 32 of 2000),
the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the
Municipality's Supply Chain Management Policy. Irregular expenditure excludes
unauthorised expenditure.  Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
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1.27.

1.28.

1.29.

1.29.1

1.29.2

{measured at actual cost incurred} in the Statement of Financial Performance and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have
been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is
accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of
Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the controi of the Municipality. A contingent
liability could also be a present obligation that arises from past events, but is not
recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability. A Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or
other unexpected events that are not wholly within the cantrol of the entity and give rise
to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits or service potential to the entity.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is
disclosed where the inflow of economic benefits or service potential is probable.

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring contingent
liabilities and assefs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Municipality's accounting policy, management has made
the following significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements:

Posi-retirement medical obligations and Long service awards

The cost of post-retirement medical obligations and long service awards are determined
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates
and future pension increases. Major assumptions used are disclosed in note 3 of the
annual financial statements. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates
are subject to significant uncertainty. ‘

Impairment of Receivables
The calculation in respect of the impairment of debtors is based on an assessment of the
extent to which debtors have defaulted an payments already due, and an assessment of

their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per
service-identifiable categories across all classes of debtors.
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1.29.3

1.29.4

Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s
estimation. Infrastructure’s useful lives are based on technical estimates of the practical
useful lives for the different infrastructure types, given engineering technical knowledge of
the infrastructure types and service requiremenis. For other assets and buildings
management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based
on management’s judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their
useful lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding ussful lives
and residual values of property, plant and eguipment.

s  The useful life of movable assets was determined using the age of similar assets
available for sale in the active market. Discussions with people within the specific
industry were also held to determine useful lives.

e Local Government Industry Guides was used to assist with the deemed cost and
useful life of infrastructure assets.

»  The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings. The Municipality also consuited with engineers to support
the useful life of buildings, with specific reference to the structural design of
buildings.

For deemed cost applied to other assets as per adoption of Directive 7, management
used the depreciation cost method which was based on assumptions about the remaining
duration of the assets.

The cost for depreciated replacement cost was determined by using either one of the
following:

o  cost of items with a similar nature currently in the Municipality's asset register;
cost of items with a similar nature in other municipalities’ asset registers, given that
the other municipality has the same geographical setting as the Municipality and
that the other municipality's asset register is considered to be accurate;

»  cost as supplied by suppliers.

For deemed cost applied to land and buildings as per adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of an independent valuator. The valuator's valuation was based
on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration
of the assets.

Intangible Assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are based on management's estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate.

Reference was made to intangibles used within the Municipality and other municipalities
to determine the useful life of the assets.
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1.29.5

1.29.6

1.29.7

1.29.8

For deemed cost applied to intangible assets as per adoption of Directive 7, management
used the depreciation cost method which was based on assumptions about the remaining
duration of the asset.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Management judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions and
when measuring contingent fiabilities. Provisions are discounted where the time value
effect is material.

Investment Property

The useful lives of investment property are based on management's estimation.
Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital funding, service
requirements and required return on assefs to determine the optimum useful life
expectation, where appropriate. The estimation of residual values of assets is also based
on management's judgement whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of their
economic lives, and in what condition they will be at that time.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding useful lives
and valuation of investment property:

e The Municipality referred to buildings in other municipal areas to determine the
useful life of buildings.

s  The Municipality also consulted with professional engineers and qualified valuators
to support the useful life of buildings.

For deemed cost applied to investment Property as per adoption of Directive 7,
management made use of on independent valuator. The valuator's valuation was based
on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration
of the assets.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy 1.23.1 on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting
Policy 1.23.2 on Revenue from Exchange Transactions describes the conditions under
which revenue will be recognised by management of the Municipality.

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the
recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9: Revenue from Exchange Transactions and
GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions.). Specifically, whether the
Municipality, when goods are sold, had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods and when services are rendered, whether the service
has been performed. The management of the Municipality is satisfied that recognition of
the revenue in the current year is appropriate.

Provision for Landfill Sites

The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when the
environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a qualified environmental
engineer. The provision represents the net present value at the reporting date of the
expected future cash flows to rehabilitate the landfil site. To the extent that the
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1.29.9

obligations relate to an asset, it is capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Any
subsequent changes to an obligation that did not relate to the initial related asset are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Management referred to the following when making assumptions regarding provisions:

e Professional engineers were utilised to determine the cost of rehabilitation of
landfill sites as well as the remaining useful life of each specific landfill site.

o Interest rates (investment rate) linked to prime was used 1o calculate the effect of
time value of money.

Staff leave accrued

Staff leave is accrued to employees according to collective agreements. Provision is
made for the full cost of accrued leave at reporting date. This provision will be realised as
employees take leave or when employment is terminated. Unused leave is being capped
at 48 days.

1.29.10 Provision for Performance bonuses

The provision for performance bonuses represents the best estimate of the obligation at
year end and is based on historic patterns of payment of performance bonuses.
Performance bonuses are subject to an evaluation by Council.

1.29.11 Pre-paid electricity estimation

Pre-paid electricity is only recognised as income once the electricity is consumed. The
pre-paid electricity balance (included under payables) represenis the best estimate of
electricity sold at year-end that is still unused. The average pre-paid electricity sold per
day during the year under review is used and the estimate is calculated using 5 days’
worth of unused electricity.

1.29.12 Componentisation of Infrastructure assets

All infrastructure assets are unbundled into their significant components in order to
depreciate all major components over the expected useful lives. The cost of each
component is estimated based on the current market price of each component,
depreciated for age and condition and recalculated to cost at the acquisition date if known
or to the date of initially adopting the standards of GRAP.

1.29.13 Impairments of assets — Capitalised Restoration Cost

Impairment charges relating to capitalised restoration costs are linked to fluctuations in
the discount rate used to unwind the provision relating to this asset. This discount rate is
linked to the prime interest rate and any movement in this rate will result in the
impairment/reversal of impairment of the asset.
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1.30.

1.31.

1.32.

1.33.

TAXES — VALUE ADDED TAX

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value added tax.
The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial
Position.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments disclosed in the annual financial statements represents the
confractual balance commitied to capital projects on reperting date that will be incurred in
the period subsequent to the specific reporting date.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the reporting date and the date when the annual financial statements are
authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

» those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date
{adjusting events after the reporting date), and

¢ those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-
adjusting events after the reporting date).

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Municipality discloses the
nature and an estimate of the financial effect.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Discontinued operation is a component of the Municipality that has been disposed of and:

. represents a distinguishable activity, group of activities or geographical area of
operations;

. is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a distinguishable activity, group
of activities or geographical area of operations; or

. is a controlled entity acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

To qualify as a discontinued operation, the disposal must occur within a single co-
ordinated plan. Once the disposal plan has been approved, the Municipality reclassifies
all related assets and liabilities associated with the discontinued operations as a separate
line-item in the Statement of Financial Position. The Municipality subsequently measures
and account for assets and liabilities associated with discontinued operations in
accordance with the respective Standards of GRAP applicable to that asset or liability.

All revenue and expenditure associated with the discontinued operations is disclosed as

a one line-item in the Statement of Financial Performance. Detail of the revenue and
expenditure associated with the discontinued operations is disclosed in the notes.
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2017 2016

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES R R
Capitatsod Loaso Liability - Al amartised £ost 295,485 575,286
Hure Furchase - 73,083
205,465 848,348
Lass: Cumenl Portion transforred to Current Liabitios 295,485 352.864
Copitased Lease Liabily - Al amortisad cost 295,485 279,601
Hirg Purchasa - T3.063
Total Leng-t Liabifities - At cost - 295,485

Minimum

The ouligations under Gnance leases are scheduled befow:
feano paymants

Ammounts payable under fnance keages:

Payabia withip one year 320,076 352,830
Paysbly within bed le five years - 320,076
Payablz after fve yaars. - -
320,076 672,965
Less: future financo oblgations {24,591} {57.678)
Prosont value of loase ebligations 29%.485 575,286
Tho capilaliced laaze fiabkity consist out of the foBowing contracts:
Dezerption Effecivn
of [nterost
Sunptier Inssed item male Annysl Esgatation Loass Term Maturity Date:
Ao Gffice ant Business Sohibiens 1 x Xorex B95A CP PRO 17.39% 0% 3 Years 2010502018
Aoa Difice end Dusness Selutiona 3 x Xerex 7970 CPEF 17T 0% 3 ¥eam 11/04/2018
Adso Office and Buginess Solubions § % Kerax 5325 CPSF 17.39% 0% 3 Years 28/052018
Aloe Office and Business Solubians 8 x Xerox 8506 CPSF 17.39% 0% 3 Years 2610512018
Aloe Office and Business Solulions 2 x FASTBACK MOQL 20 9.75% 0% 2.5 Years 20/04/2018
Minimum

The abligations under hire purchase agresments are scheduled boiow:
hire purchase payments

Amounis payabla under hie purchase agreamants.

Payzblke within one yaar - 75491
Payabia wilhin two ta fove yoars -
Payablo atior fivo yoars - -
- 76,491
Ltess: Fulure finonce obligations (3.425)
+ 73,063

Prasant value of hire purchase abligations

The capitatised hin purchase Eabdity consist oul of the fo¥owing contracts:

Suppliar wased flem Annual Escalation Leaso Temm Maturity Dot
Standard Bank HISSAN CASHOAL 9.25% 0% 5Years 15/052017
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Poat Retirement Bencfits - Rafer to Noto 3.1
Long Senvice Awards - Refor Lo Nola 3.2

Total Hen<currant Employes Benafit Liabililies

Post Retimment Bonsfits

Balanco 1.July

Cantrdbution for the year

Interest Cost

Expandilura for the yeor

Actuarial Gain

Tota! post ratirement benofits 30 Juna
Less:  Transfor of Cument Portian - Nale &

Balznce 30 Juna

Lang Servica Awards

Baiance 1 Juty

Canlibution for the year

Interest Cost

Expendilure for the year

Actuarial Logs{Gain}

Total loag service 30 June

Less:  Transfer of Cumrent Portien - Nale 5

Balanea 30 Juna

TOTAL NON-CURRENT EMPOLYEE BENEEITS

Balance 1 July

Contribution for the ysar

intenest cost

Expanditure for tho year

Actuaria) Lessi{Gain)

Total omployns benefits 30 June

Lozs:  Transfer of Cument Portion - Nete 5

Balanca & funa
Post Ralirament Benofiis
The Post Retirement Bonefit Plan is a definet contribution plan, of which tha members are made up a5 ¥ows:

In-semvico {smpkayas} membors
In-senice {employoa) nen-membors
Centinuation members (e.g. Retiress, widows, orphans)

Total Members

Tha Eabiity in respecl of past senvico hos boen ostimated o be as folows:
In-service mempers

In-service nen-membiers

Canmtinuation members

Tota! Liability

Tha tabity in respoct of periads priof 1o the year has been estemaled as
foBows:

In-serdce members
In-serica nannembers
Genlinuation members

Tolal Liablity

2617
Expencnes adjustments wore colculated as lolaws: R
Liabiities [Gain) f ks (0.232)
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017 2016
[ R
5,171,047 5,156 680
1.706.579 1,376,055
6.877.527 5.532.735
2057 2016
R R
5.203,204 4,348,117
716,360 801,840
476,574 400,101
(63407} {60,651)
{1,108,621) (84.203)
5,222,110 5,203,204
(53,06%) (46,524)
5,171,047 5,156,680
1605773 1,402,424
381,046 281,148
125,638 101,918
(06.574) (98,352)
{160.927) {80,365)
1,846,855 1,605,173
{140,276) {229,748)

R T

1,376,055

6,800,977 5,74B.541
1.050.308 882,953
02,212 502,010
(159.98%} {160,003)
(1,278,548} {164.560)
7,076,566 6,808,977
(193,339} {276.242)

€,877,627

6.532.735

[:T4 87
125 108
2 2
214 197
3,277,195 3,298,654
1.136.202 1,007,021
810,712 806,719
5,224,110 5,203,204
07 2016
R R
4,492 116 4333826
1,009,782 GB6GAD
291,804
5,453,702 5,220,472
2016 M5
Rm R
{0.0B2} {0.914)
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EMPLOYER BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 2y 2018

The municipakly makos monthly ns for heath cate 1o tho folowing medical ad schemes:

fBonitas;
Hosmed
LA Health
Samwumed
Koy hegith

Koy actuanal agsumptions used: Y L]

i} Rateof interast

Discount rate 9.8B% 9.20%
Heatth Care Cost Infation Rate 8.24% 828%
Net Effeetive Discount Rate 161% 0.84%

Tha discount rie used is a composite of ai govarnment bonds and is calculated using o tachnigue i kndwn a8
“bootstrapping™

1

Mortality rates
The PA 90 utlimata tabla, rated down by 1 year of 2ge was used by tho actuarnes.
iii) Hormat reliroment age

It hies been assumed Lhat in-senice members Wi rotife at age B0 for fomales and 65 for mates, which then impkily alows
for expocted rates of eardy and &-haalth reticernent.

R R
Tha ameunls racognised In the Statement of Financlal Pesition are ag follows:
Present wihe of fund ohitgatons 5.224,110 65,203,204
Total Liztility 5,224,110 §,203,204
The fund is enlirely unfunded,
The municipality has elacled to recognise the full increase in this defined contribution kabiity immediately as per GRAP 25
Rocangiliation of present value of fund obligalion:
Present value of fund ehigation at the beginning of the year 5,203,204 4,346,117
Total expenses 1,120,527 941,250
Curient senvice cosl 716,360 601,840
Intorest Cost 476,574 400,101
Benolis Paid {63,407} (608511
Acluanial {gains)lessen (1,108,621) {B4,20%)
Present valuo of lund ohigation at the end of the year 5224110 5,203,204
Less:  Trangfer of Curent Portion - Hota 5 {53,063) [46,524)
Aalanca 30 June 5,171,047 5,156 680
Sanalivity Analysis on the Accruad Liability
H-SEVICD
mernbess Continualion
liability membars fiability Totat llabllity
Assumpticn {Rm) {Rm) (Rmy)
Central Assumptians 4412 agit 5.224
The efect of movenents in the assumptions are as fobows:
n-sesvice
membors Continuation
labiity members Hability Total fiabilty
Assumption Change [Rm} {Rm) (Rm) % change
Hazailh care inflatan % 5418 0.097 6313 21%
Hoatlh caro inflaton -1% 3630 0736 4266 18%
Discount Rato 1% 3.647 0738 4365 -16%
Dicount Raty 1% 5408 0.895 5.304 21%
Post-retitemaent mortality -1 year 4561 0839 5.400 3%
Averago relirement age -1 year 4836 D811 5657 8%
Conli af ip at reté ~10% 3.503 ogtt 4214 -17%
Gurrant-
service Cost Intarast Cast Total
Assumplion Change iR} {R) R) * change
Cenlral Apsumglion 716400 476,600 1,183,000
Health care inflation 1% 838,500 576,600 1,475,100 A%
Hoalth care inflalion -1% 577,100 337,700 974,800 -18%
Dizcount Rate 15 534,500 442,300 1,026,800 -1
Diseount Rats -1% 830,500 514,000 1,404,500 6%
Past-ratiremant moriatty -1 yoar 742,500 494,200 1,236,700 4%
Averagareliement age -1 ynar 741400 520.200 1,261,800 8%
Continuation of membership at retirement ~10% 588,600 393,500 961,100 ~19%
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS [CCNTIHUED)
Long Sorvica Bonusas
The Long Servico Bonus plang are dofined banefit plans,

As at yoar and, tho foowing number of empkiyoes ware clighle for Long Service Bonuses.

Key actuanal assumplions used:

1} Aato of Interast

Discount rata
General Salary Infiation {long-tem)
Nt Effective Discount Rate applicd 10 saloryrebated Long Senvice Bonuses

Tha discount rate used is a composito of 2t govornment bonds and i calcutalad using & lechnique is known as
“bogistrapping”

Tha isad in the of Financlal Posilion are as follows:

Present valup of fund obkgations

Met labllity

The kshity in respeet of periads prior 1o the. hva year has been esth as

Tolal Liability

Expeorignce adjustments were calculated as fobows: 2017
Lishitting: (Gain) /3058 (73.165)

The municipakly pedformed their Erst actuarnis! valuation on 30 June 2012. Thus there are no
axperenco adjustment figures avodable on or befero 30 June 2012 la fully comply with GRAP 25

Roconciiiation of prosent value of fund obligation:

Prosant valug of fund abbgation at the beninning of the year
Total expenses

Current service cost
Intarest Cost
Benedits Paid

Actuanal (gainglosses

Present value of fund oblgation at the oad of e yoar
Less;  Transfer of Cument Portian - Nole §
Balance 30 June

Sonsitivity Analysis on the Unfunded Accrued Liabillty

Assumption Change
Cenlral assumplions

Goneral salary inflation 1.00%

Goneral silary inflation -1.00%
Piscount Rate 1.00%

Discount Rate -1.00%
Average relirement age 2 yrs

Average retiremant age +2yT5

Withdrawal rates -50.00%
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2617 2016
212 125
2617 2016
% %
8244 8.41%
6.16% 7.08%
2.05% 1.25%
R R
1,848,855 4,605,773
1,846,855 1,605,773
05 2014
R R
1,711,418 1,453,534
2016 2015
R ]
(33.788) 08,604
R E}
1805773 1402424
411,010 263,744
261,945 281,148
125,635 101,518
(96,574} {89.352)
(169,927} {80.365)
1,846,856 1605773
(140,276} (229,710}
1,706,580 £375,055
Liabliity
{r % changa
1.847
4853 6%
V4G -5%
1746 5%
1.858 6%
Y 6%
1806 3%
2258 22%




EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED}

Ratiremant funds 2017 2016

As part of the Municipality's procoss 1o valus the defined benafit Babiibias, tha Municipality requested
pensianer data fiom tha fund i . Tho fung n elair that the pens data to b
confidential and were not wiing ko share the infomatan with the Municipatiy, Withoul detaded pensionor
data the Municipakty was unabls to calzulale a refiabla esBmalo of the accrucd Sabiily in rospect of
pensionars who quatly for o dafined benofit pension.

Therefore, although the Cape Jomt Rolirement Fund and SALA are Muli Emplayoer funds as defined &
Wil be ied {or o5 dofined jon plans. All the required disclosure has boen made 25 defined
in GRAP 2531,

CAPE JOINT RETIREMERT FUND Cﬂl'llrl‘gulinn

The e payshio & 9% by and 18% by Council, 154

R R
C paid qrisad in the of Financial 4,704,055 3,543,856

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION FUKGS

Councl contribute to the South Aftican Local Autheritios Pensian Fund, Municipal Counciors Pension Fund and SAMWL
NMotiondl Pravidant Fund which are defined contibution funds. The relirement bonefit fund is subjec! to the Pensian Fund Act,
1956, with pansion being calculated on ho pensionable remunsration pakl. Cument contribulions by Counell are charged
agninst oxpenditure on the basis of curant senvice costs,

Tast —
Actuarial L°nm:u““u
Valuatiop fmomsers
South African Local Authoritios Ponsion Fund 2015/06:30 18
Municinnl Councillors Pansion Fund 20150630 ki
SAMWU Malianat Pravidont Sund 20150630 35

The last acluanal vatuation performed fos the ysar ended 30 June 2015 revented that the fund 5 in o sound Enancial pasiion
with a funding lavel of 100% (30 Juna 2014 - 108.2%).

The MCPF is financialy sound as por tho actuarial vialuation report al 30 June 2015, with & funding level of 100%

The reaults of the actuarial valuations dated 30 June 2015 for SAMWL National Frovident Fund were nol yol avaisbio.

C paxd ised in the of Financigt Perdgmance
Salz Pension Fund 447,187 469,162
Municipat Councifiors Ponsion Fund 1.213,042 899,255
SAMWI Nabanal Provident Fund 879,397 821,241
2.500.626 2,189,762
Provision for Ex-Graliz payment-GFO
Balanee at begpnning of year 172014 157,642
Contribulion to cuneat postion: - 14472
Transfer o revenue [172.014)
Bataneo at and of year - 172,014

in terms of the scctien 57 Employment coniract af the Chief Financial Officar, as amount of 153 of hig total package must be
paid to him at the tme of lermination of employmant
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2017 2016
HON-CURRENT PROVISIONS R R
Prosision for Rehab&tation of Landf&-sics a ]
Total Hon-cursent Provisions. 0 (0)
The Municipatity operate on (hreo landf@ sites. Tho in yoar actual operali cosis & in the of financial
perdarmance, The provision is cakeulated in erder to finance the rehab@tation cost of nach eoff when & reaches 100% capacily.
Tho expected cash flow sotfiowr within ene yean relales to sk three sites of the cese of &l three sites thore is aleady 2
shericoming in the day to doy operations of the sites these cost is represented by the sharttemm partion of tho non-cumenl
ravision.
‘The landfd sites in operabon are Lady Frere; Cordrechi and Ingwe,
Lanflf Sites R R
Balance 1.July 10525817 11,514 635
Increase in Estimato
Unwinding of discounted intarest 6B4.414 {988,718)
Tolal provision 30 June 11,210,331 10525917
Less: - Trangfer to Cunent provisions §11.210.334} {10.525.017)
Batanca 30 June & {0}
Tho ick has an o landifi sites at the end of the expoctod useful He. Tolal cost of rehabiitation 6f
the cument ceffin operation and estimated date of decommissian of the coll ara a5 fobows:
Estimated Renabliitation Rehabllitation
docommission gontof collin cosi of cell in
Locatisn daly use use
R R
Lady Frere landfi sito is Jocated approxmately 2.0km wesl off Indwe road R 394 300812018 3839437 3,607,207
Dordracht bindfiE site is located off R56 aboul 800m after the Dondrecht lown ta Queanstown Route 110BE 5,601,824 5,261,506
tadwe fandfit site i5 located cast off RS6 approximalely 260m before the town of indwo 322020 1,769,070 1,857,204
11,210,331 10,525,917
Material Assumptions used
Area of landlill site consumed 2015 2056 097
Lady Frero kindfé sio is focatad approsimataly 2 0km wesl off Indwo road R 394 100.00% 100.00% 106.00%
Dardtecht landfi sita is lecatad off R56 aboul 800m after Lhy Dandrecht lown la Quaenstown Roule 100.00% 160.00% 108.00%
Indwn tandf site i3 located east off H56 sppriamately 260m bafore the town of ndwa 100.60% 100.00% 10B.00%

The discount rato used tha calsulate the presenl value of tho rehabitation costs al each repading periad is based on
cakutated sk free rate a5 determined by the municipalty. This rata i in Bnewith a it i rate tho ic
can obtain from an A grade inancial inslituion. This rale used is alsa within the inflation target range of the South African
Resorve Bank of betwoon 3% lo 6%,

Fage 52



EMALAHLENE MUNICIFALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

217 2086
CURREKT EMPLOYEE BENEFIFS R R
Curtent Portion of Post Retroment Bensfis - Note 3 53,063 46,524
Cumenl Portion of Long-Senica Prowaions - Note 3 140,276 228,718
Staff leaws accrued 5,974,778 47724648
Provision for Performance Bonusas 1,078,898 980,735
Stafl Bonutes aeerued 1.429,596 1,160,793
Provision for Compensation for injunics an duty contribution 355,653 354,609
Total Carrent Empleyea Benefits 9,032,174 7,544,344
The in current Banoflls is ited as follows:
Steff Ipave accruad
Balance at beginning of yaar 4,772,464 4484110
Cantribulion Lo currant porion 2321668 T02.687
Expondiure incurod (1,119,355} {414,313)
Balance at end of year 5,974,778 4,172.464
Sialff kava accrusd Lo K ing to colieclve ag 1L An acorual is mads for the full cest of accrued lsave ot
reporting dato, The acerualvil be realised as employees tke ieave, There is a possbidy of rembursement based on trends in
the past.
Provision fer Parfermance Benuses
Balance at beginning of yoar 980,735 720818
Contrdbulon o currant portion 1,078,808 1,031,547
Expenditure incumed (980,735} (F71,730)
Balance atend of year 1478,808 09B9,735
Perommance bonuses are being pak 1o Municipal Manager and Sirectors after an evaluabion of performance by the counci,
Sraff Bonises dcorued
Balance at beginning of yoar 1,160,793 943,465
Contribution to current portion 2,944,805 2,230,296
Exponditure incered (2,676.003) {2.012,968)
Halanca at end of year 1,425,505 1,168,793
Bonuses are being paid to all permanent employad municipal stoff, excluding soetion 57 Managers. The balance at yoar end
represent to portion of the banus that have already vasted for the cument satary cyele.
Provision for Compan=ation far infrries on duty contribution
Batanc al beginning of year 354,609 Tar.054
Contitution to cument portion 370,522 374,837
Expendituro incumed {369,479 (757.2B2)
Balance al end of year 355,552 354,609

Tha batanca on the camponsation for injuries on duty contribution reprezents the current lability of the municipality that has not
yelbean paid over to the relevant authorilies. The batinca reprosants the bast estimate the outflow of resources. The Uming and
amaunt ef tho outflow is depandant on whan an assessmanl is received from Whe relevant authioritias.
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8.2

83

PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIGNS

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NCTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2097

Trade Payaties 14,125,334 16,083,803
Third party payablas {Payrof) 1,343,359 46,145
Pre- paid efectricity paid in advance 115442 210,486
Advance paymnents debtors-biging 504,265 1,247,489
Relantions and Guaronteas 3.803.872 £134013
Sundty Doposits 35,520 21,640
Sundry Croditons 56,206 94,608
Tolal Tradn Payables 20,040,598 21,818,953
Payabies are being recagnised net of any discounts.
Payables s beitg paid within 30 days 85 prescribed by the MFMA. This credit period gronted & considerad {o be consistent
with the lerms used in the pubk: sector, through esisblshed peaglices and fagisiation. Discounting of bade and othet paysbles
on initial racognition is Not deemicd Necessany
The camying valee of irade and other payables approximatas #s fair vakie, Al payables are unsecueed. Sundry deposits inchud
hafl, tonder and other genersl deposits. Tha Muniipality did nat default 6n any of their payables
UNSPENT CONDITIONAL GOVERHMERT GRANTS AND RECEIPTS R R
Unspent Granls BO0.500 1,157,442
Nationsl Govemment Grants - -
Provincial Gavornment Grants - 1,157.442
District Mumicipakity 800,500 -
Lass:  Unpaid Granis 1,601,866 -
Hatonal Goversmenl Granis -
Pravincial Govasnment Grants 1205,102
_ District Municipa . . 468,764
Total Condilional Granis and Receipts. = S T3 AET
Seo appendic D for reconciation of grants from other sphetes of g . Th s campked with tho
atiached to of granis reveiad lo the extant of rovenun recogaised. No grants were withhekd.
Unspenl gmints can mainly be attributed to prajocts that are work in progreas on the refovant financial year-ands.
VAT R R
VAT PAYABLE
VAT Payablo 3,145,747 3854219
Less: npaiment of VAT receivibios {1,337.008) (801,520}
Tolal Val payabie 1,808,741 2,852,60%
VAT RECEVABLE
VAT Receivable 13.271.060 2,860,234
Tolal VAT receivobio 43,271,060 8880234
NET VAT RECEIVABLENPAYABLE) 1,462,319 6,027,535

VAT is roccivable!payable on the cash basis.
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PROPERTY, PLAHT AND EQUIPHENT

Sec attached sheats ond replace
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ERDED 30 JUNE 2017

PROPERTY, PLANT AR0 EQUIPIENT [CONTINUED)
Ho assels pledged as sesurty,

tmpairment of proparty plant and equipment for the year

2017
R

impaiment chorges on Propeity, plant and equi ised in

of finaneiat

Reversal of impaimment chargas ook place during the year of reporting.

Cl ehamges i in major

11,247,162

The affoct of z changa In sccounling oslimate will have en tha curnent peried and subsaquant porisds;

Effest on Properly, planl 2nd equipment

Assosement of impairmant of assals was poerformed on other assols,

2017
R
{3,576,896%

2018
R

[3,623,864)

016
R

635,644
11,347,962

2019
R
{3,600,45B)

Property, Piant and Equipmani which is in tho process of belng constructed er

davalapad

Infrastructura Assots
Roads
Electricity
Salid Waste

Communliy Assals
ulhat Agdsld

Total Property, Plant and Equipment under consiruction

38,725,654
18,593475
2.562.484
9,549,898

T.09z.104
4,800,697
42,658,532

Property, Plant and Equigmanl that is taking a significantly Ionger poariod of tima

to complete as expocted §

Infrastructura Assots
Sobd Wasly

Community Assols
Other Aszets

Total

Reasons for the delays :

Landfd site - Community Stikos due to unhappingss with projects
Harry Gwala Community Haf - Conlractor was nat finished yot

Cemetanes andg Pounds - Completion cortificates were not svalabla

Property, Mast and

where or p

Infragiructura Assets
Reads

Community Assets
Othor Assnts

Tolal

HNeguka Access Rond - Haltad due to funding

9,543,698

8,549,650

4,191,430

13.741.188

has been halted:

3,748,436

3,743,436

3,748,438

Expandilure incurred be mpalr and maintain Propery, Plant and Equipmant;

Employeo refdled costs

Othar materials

Coalraeted Senvices

Other Expanditure

Tolal Repairs and Maintenanca

INVESTHENT PROPERTY

Mol Garrying amount at 1 July
Cost

Accumuinled Depreciabion

Acquisitions
Dapreciatian for the year
Dispasals
Translers toffram olther classas
Met Carrying amount at 30 June
Cost

Buikdings

Lang
Aceumulated Depreciation

Theroe are no 5 an the ity of Proporty of the

1,124,531
1,238,709
2,014,222

10,845
4,189,387

R

4,162,287

R

6351214

4226300

685,572
3.530,728

64,013)

6.407.214

695,572
5711.842

{56.000})

(7.859)

(8.014)
{2.180.94)

4,154,287

4,162,287

4226.300

695572
3.530.728

4,226 300
695572
3.530.728

{72,013}

(64,013)

of revenue and proceads of disposal.

“There are no centractual cbégations to purchase, construct or develop investmont praperty of far repass, mamionance or

enhancements,

The fair value of invastment property approxmates the carnying amounl as reflected in these financial stalements,

Revonue detteod from the rental of invostment property

4,266
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EMALAHLENI MURICIPALITY
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Oporating Expanditurs insumed on propertias: Repairs and Dther
10.6 Malntanance Cpoereting

Revenue Genaraling

Iimproved Property - E
Unimproved Property -

Non-rovenue Generating

Unimpraved Plop'cny | - | | |

10.7  investment Froperty which is In tha procoss of bring constructad er - -
davelopod

108  investnent Propery that is laking a significantly fongar periad of time - -
1o complete as expectnd @

109 porty whare or has been halted: - -
2017 2016
INFTANGIBLE ASSETS R R
1.1 Comguter Software
et Carrying ameunt at 1 July 130,766 - 206,752
Cost 8,474 951.433
Accumulled Amortisation (670,708} {704,681}
Acvumulated Impaienent - -
Agguisitons. 282540 10,950
Dispasals (78,233) {53,228)
Amprisation [26,235) {33,707)
Het Carrying amount 2% 30 Juna 308,828 130,767
Cost 1.005,781 B3 474
Atcumulated Amorisation {696,943) {870,T0B)
Mo intangible aszot was assessed as having on indefinde useful Ha. There are no inlemally gencroted intangiile assols at
repoting date. There are no intangible assels whosa btle is restictsd. Thers aro no intangile assels pledged a5 socunty for
EgbEls, There are no cantactual {ot tha iitian of i assals,
The effect of a change in accounding estimato wik have on the cumant penod and subsequent penods:
2017 2018 2019
R R R
-1 17,310 18,289
2017
R
112 Resecarch and Development Cosls:
Rescarch Exponditute
Development Expanditure
Total and D dil -

2011
R
1.3 Intangible Assets which is In the process of boing constructed or developed:

1.4 Intanglbte Assets that Is taking a significantly tanger period of ima to complata than expected:

41.5  Intangible Asseis where conslruction or devalopment has been halted;
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HERITAGE ASSETS

Hel Carrying amount ot 1 uly
Acquisiians

Heol Garrying amount at 30 June
Cest

Hetiage Assels consists of
The assets were measured 3t its cost,

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

182,535 182,536

462,534 182,536

[ seesell s

"Riere aro no rastrictions on the realisablity of Hertage Assels or the temittance of revenue and proceeds of disposal,

enhancemants.

Thera are no Honitagae Assets pledgad as security for fabgitias

Exponditure incurrad o repaic and maintain Heritage Assets:

Employno refated costs

Other materiats

Conlraclod Senvices

Other Expendilura

Totat Repairs and Maintenance

07

Herltage Assels which is In tha pracess of balng construcied or daveloped: -

Horitage Assels that is taking a significantly longer paried of time te compiate than expectod; -

Reasans lor delays

Haritage Assels whore cangruclion or davelopment has bean halted:

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Efgclricity

Refuse

Renlsl

Othar Consumor Deblors
Lhas Hani Erebter
Sundry Recovablos

Total from Ti

Provision for impaimant
Tetal Hat from

2017
S
2017
R
2817
£
R R
1,677,745 4,345,623
40.262.104 39,044,782
2225656 1,891,531
3,776,090 3.776.090
- 200,754
47,941,505 49,357,780
{42.258,195) (44.868,150)
5503400 7,469,630

Lonsumer debiers are payably within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered o be consistent wih the lemms used in
the puble soctor, through ostablished pragtices and lagislatian. Discounting of rade and other recetvablas on inital recognison

& notdeemed necassary.
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EMALAHLEN] MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2017

RECEIVABLES FROM EXCBANGE TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Ageing of F from
{Eiscicity): Agolny
Current {9 - 30 days)
31- 60 Days

6190 Days

+ 90 Bays

Totat

[Refusel: Againg
Cument {0 - 30 days}
31-60 Days

&1 - 00 Days

+ 90 Days

Total

[Rantal): Aqaing
Cument {T - 30 days}
31 -60 Days

81 - 80 Days

+ 90 Days

Tolal

[Othos): Ageing
Gurenl (0 - 30 days)
31 -6D Days

61 -80 Days

+90 Daya

Totat

[Torali: Apelng
Curment (0 - 30 days)
31-60Days

£1-80 Days

+ 80 Days

Total

Reconciliation of Provision for Bad Debts
Balance al boginning of yoar

Contribution to provision/{Reversal of provisian)
Wiitten offs

Balance at end of year

The Pravision for Impaiment could be afocaled betwoon the difforent classes of receivables as fokows:
Etsttricity

Rehisa

Cther

Concentrations af credit risk with respect Lo lrade rocoivobles are kmitsd dug 1o the municipaly's lamge number of cuslomars,
The ] historical ' in of trade T {ats within recorded atowancas. Due to those facters,

beleves that na i risk beyand amounts provided for coiaction lossos is inherent in the municipality's trado
receivables. Asseszment of arcars on Ratos and Sonien accounts in terms of MFMA Seci121t (3){e) by tho Acccunting Officer.
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2017 2616
R R
A01.555 180,128
154,735 153,898
118,927 130,116

1,102,528 3,880,483

1,677,745 4,344,523
526,288 505,946
500,365 522,726
486,519 502,501

36,748,932 37,513,608
40,262,104 29,044,782
61,777 62425
53,182 55,980
52,506 56,617

2,058,191 1,817,500

2,225,656 1,891,531
869,619 748,405
708,203 732,604
657,952 688,234

41,909,651 43,211,601
44,465,505 45,185,638
41,585,150 40,060,287
4,755,624 5,956,007
-4,3B5 578 (£,128,144)
42,256,195 41,888,150
408694 1,063,603
39.977.727 IBTTAZS
1,871,574 2,050,423
42,258,195 41,888,150
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2617

2017 2018
RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANRGE TRANSACTIONS R ;3
Rates 16.458,293 14,078,302
Other Reccivables (51,068) 2457210
Ofhor Recorablas | (51,068) || 3.a87,210 |

Tatal i from H: T i 15,407,225 18,535,512
Less:  Provision for impaimont [13.790.525) {11,257,775)
Total Hol from K T 1,656,701 5,277,736
Rates doblers are payable within 20 days. This credit pened granled is considernd 1o ba consstent with the tarms used in tho
pubks seclor, through cstablished practicns and egislation. Discounting of rates dobtors are ot parfarmad in teams of GRAP
104 on inital recognition.
Agoing of reabies from Ny T

114 i3
[Rates): Againg
Current {0 - 20 dayn) 124.008 110,769
31-60Days 318,439 349,062
€1 -90 Doys 285,053 279,803
+90 Days 14,730,753 13,338.764
Total 15,458,293 14,078,307
Raconciliation of frovision for Impairment
Balanco at baginning of yasr 11,257,775 7,955,764
Contribution to provisioni{Reversal of pravision) 2,492,750 3,302,011
Bad Dabls Written O
Balance at end of yoar 13,750,525 11,257,775
The entire provisian for bad debts relates Lo the oulstanding rales balance.
Concentratians of credil risk with respect 1o these receivables are Rmited due to the municipaity’s targn number ol customers,
The municipally's historical cxperience in cobeclion of trade recevabias falls within recordad aowances. Dug to lhesa faciors,
management bokoves that ng additional risk beyond amounts provided lor cobection ¥osses i inherent in the municipalty's trado
recenvablas. Assesement of aroars on Rates and Senvica accounts in terms of MEMA Secri121 (3) {0) by the Acgaunting Officer.
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

R R
Tho Kunicipalily as Lossor (Assol)
Batance on 1 Juty 82,746 17415
Maovemen! during the yoar 4,266) 5.330
Balanca on 20 June 78,480 82,746
Althe Statement of Financizl Pasition ¢ate, whero the municipakty acts 05 a Lessor under oparalting foaces, it wil recoie
operating leaso incomo as folows:
U ta 1 Yoear 114,566 135,118
1105 Years 318,088 432,655
More than S Years
Total Qperaling Laass Arrangemaonts 432,655 567,772

The Municipalty does not ¢ngaga in any subaase arrangements.
The Municipality did nol receive any contingont egn! during the year

Certain of the Munkipakty's propedics are laased to thisd parties to gencrate rantal income.  Leases receipts cacalate annuaty
an average by 10%. Lease agreements aro non-cancetiable and have terms from 3 19 10 vears.,
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
CASH AND CASE EQUIVALENTS R R
Assets
Call Investments Deposits 10,260,055 25,033 440
Bank Accounts 2.B73.642 2375770
Cash Floats 300 20,252
Total Cash and Caznh Equivalents - Assots 13,133,908 28,419,461
Cash and cash equivalonis comprise of cash okt and shert torm dapasits, Tho carmying amaount of thase assats 8pproxmates
their it volue,
The Municipaity has tho folowing bank accounts:
Current Acenunts R R
Standard Bank - Currant Account - 0B2-565-958 161,976 78,385
Slandard Bank - Cumrenl Account - 0B2-530-631 2,386,023 148,952
First National Bank - Cument Account - 620-4898-6425 326842 2,148,400

2,873,642 2,375,170
Al accounts is cloared daily o Pramary Bank Account; eurrent account 082-655-358.
Standard Bank - Curenf Account - DAZ-GE5-858
Cash book balange at beginning of yoar 78,389 470,729
Cash book balance at end of year 161,976 78,308
Bank statemaent batanea at baginning of year 78,399 470,729
Bank slatemant balance at and of yoar 161.976 78.359
Stendard Bank - Curront Account - §82-630-621
Cash book balanes al baginning of yoar 25,063 1.863.238
Cash book balance 8l ond of yoar 2,386,023 25,063
Bank statoment balanco al beginning of yoear 148,508 1,863,238
Bank statement balance alend af year 2,386.023 148,508
First Mallanai Bank + Currant Account - 620-4898-6428
Cash book balance at beginning of year 2,148,408 B58.280
Cash book balance at and of yoar 326,642 2,148,408
Bank statement batance &l beginning of yoar 2,148,408 858,280
Bank statement batance at end of year 325,642 2,148,408
Call Invesimant Dopasite
Cakinvesiment Joposils congist of the fobovang aecounts:
Cat tnvestments Deposits 16,260,055 25,023,440
Investec Account Number's: 451/465258 9,624,528 11,140,266
First National Bank Account Numbarls: 74366334164 48,113 14,357,428
Slandard Bank Account Numbeds: 08 878 $687 - 032 10,573 43,333
Standard Bank Account Numbeds: 08 8753 9697 - 001 202,057 202,057
ABSA Account Mumber/s 207951783 361,984 -
ABSA Account Numhacls B3-2520144% 807 -
Slandard Bank Aceount Mumbers, 02 873 9627 - 020 11.882 280,356
PROPERYY RATES
Actual
Raleable Land and Bulldings 4,146,296 3,744.280
Rezwlantisl, Cammareial Property, Stale 3.281.889 3,000,210
Agrrulturt 864,408 743,980
Loss: Rebales - -
Total Assassmant Rates 4,146,236 3,744,290
Valyations
fateabla Land and Buildings:
Rasdential 249,053,000 233,505,604
Agricultural 515,769,900 491,459,300
Governmest 68,777,900 52,397,600
Business & Commercial 131,085403 128,211,401
Kunigipal 68,171,800 63,534,400
Exempt Properties 15,752,401 27,223,900
Total Asseasment Rates 1,068,610,484 1,822,632,205

Velations on langd and bulbdings aro performed evary four years, Tha kst veluation camo inte offecton 1 July 2014
Rebates can b dofined as any inceme that the Municipstty i entitled by law to lewy, bul which has
subsequently been fargone by way of rebate or remission.
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EMALAHLENI MURIGIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
G Grants and R R
Unconditional Grants 114,589,000 116,527,000
Equitabis share [ 11e599000 || 116537000 |
Conditionat Grants 43,646,205 59,267,259
Geants and subsidics [ aase6205 || 58,267,259 |
Total Grants and i 158,245,205 175,804,259
Govemment Grants and Submidies - Capital 26,470,700 an,614,700
Government Grants and Subsidies - Operating 132,075,108 145,789,559
158,245,205 175,804,259
Revenua recognised per vole as requized by Secton 123 {e) of the MFMA
Budget and Treosury 110,151,000 113.314.000
Communidy Services 4,127.441 892,769
Councd 5,500,000 6,140,000
Elgelricity 9.317.000 21,000,000
Exccutive 200,008 -
IPED - 31470
Refuza 200,004 200000
Roads Transpost 27,659,764 34,226,000
158,245,205 175,804,259

Th . does nol sapect any s changos lo the kevel of grants.

184 Equita®ie shamn
Opening batance - -
Grants recerved 114,599,000 116,537,000
Grant expenditure - Operating {114,539,000} {116.537.000)
Grant expenditure - Capital - -
Grant npt spent - -
The Equitabk: Shara is the uncondilional share of the revenus riised nationally and is being a%iccaled in lorms of Section 294 of
the Constiution {Act 108 of 1996) to the municipakty by the Wational Treasury-

18,2 tacal Government Financial Management Gmant (FRG)
Opening balance - -
Cranly rectied 2,010,000 1.875,000
Conditions met - Operating {2,010,000} {1,875,000;
Conditions met - Capitat - -
Conditiens slill o be mot - -
The Financiz Managament Grant is poid by National Treasury o municipakties 1o help #nplement the financial reforms required
by the Municipal Financo Managemant Aet (MFMA), 2003, Tha FMG Grant atse pays for the cost of the Firancia! Managemant
Internship Programme (0.9, salary costs of the Financiat Management intems).

1B8.3  Beautification of Parks - Lady Frare
Opening batange - -
Grants recoived - 930,000
Conditions met - Operating - {830,000}
Luondtions met - Capital - -
Conditions st 1o be mat - -
The MSIG was usod for bulthng in-house capacily o porform municipat functions and stab#ze insbilubional and governanca
Systems.

184  Municipal Infrastnicturs Grant (MIG)
Opening batanceg . .
Grants receivad 24,758,000 32,226,000
Conditians mel - Operating {1,587.900) {1.811.300)
Conditians mel - Capital {23,170,100} 130,614,700}
Conditians sti fo be met N ~
The geant was used to upgrade il in dy d d aeeas.

Page 63



EMALAHLEN) MURICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2047

2017 2018
GOVERNHMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES [CONTINUED) R R
Integrated Mational Elnctrification Grant (INEP)
Oponing balance .
Grants received 9,317,008 21,000,000
Condittons met - Operating 18,317.000) (21.060.00D)
Cenditians mat - Capital - -
Grant expendiure to be recavencd - -
Tha National Electification Grant was used for elactrical ions in proviousty di arpas.
Olher Grants
Qpening batance 1,157,442 348,600
Grants recoived 6,442,398 4,045,000
Grants tronsfemed {930,000}
Conditons mel - Operating {4,581,208) (3.236.259)
Canditons met - Capital {3,068.000)
Conditions still 1o ba met {691,366} 1,157,442

Vatious grants were received (rom ofher sphores of government {e.g. Library fund and Extended Pubke Works Program}

Tetal Grants
Opening batanca 1,157 443 348,700
Granls recetved 157,126,398 176,612,000
Grants transfered (930.000) -
Conditions met - Qparating {132,075,106) {145,189,550)
Condiians met - Capital {28,170,100) [30,674,7060)
Canditiens st& to be met(Grant expanditure to ba rocovened) {891,365} 1,157,442
Distlored a5 folows,
Unspent Conditional Govarament Grants and Racepts 800,500 1,167 442
Unjiaid Uondéanal GovEimifignt Lrants #id Heespl (1,651 ,666) ‘
{691,366} 1,157,442
SERVICE CHARGES
Elactricity 11,022,548 B,746.023
Water - 27
Reduse remavat 5,609,738 4,562,081
Sewarage and Sanilation Charges ani {47,085}
16,632,687 13,261,071
Lenm Rebatos (1,833,600} 1,224,883}
Talal Service Charges 14,799.067 12,016,187
febales con bo defined as any incoma that the Municipalty is entidad by Izw lo fevy, but which has
subsequently been fogans by way of tebate o remisgion.
INTEREST EARHED
Exlomat Invasimonts.
interest lnvostimants 2,269,107 3,784,565
intorest Bank Batance 43.544 £1.500
Tolal External Investmonts 2,312,651 3.846.%24
Oulstanding Dabtors
Propenty Ratos 1,345,990 1,436,406
Refuse 2983631 2,650,830
Elettricity 203,809 378413
Rent 170,343 167.300
Tatal Quistanding Debtors 4,708,774 4,632,959
Total Inierast Earned 7,021,425 8,479,063

Page 64



21

22

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

OTHER INCOME 2017 2016
R R

Administralian chargas - -
Buiding plans 15,525 19,833
Branding of Lrostack 1,921 4,608
Comatery Feas 38,064 28,145
Provision for Ex-Grolia paymant- CFQ - recovered - -
Cannection Feas 53,796 192,813
insurance incomo 138,571 232,494
LGSETA 97.590 73078
Pound Fees 7691 216413
Registrations - 8,442
Hausing Admin Foos 13,500 33,550
Sundry incoma 420,009 160,307
Total 786,757 762,563
Less: Transforred to Discontinued Operations - Note 50.2 - 2,265,864
Tatal Gthar Income 78E,757 3048427

Sundiyincoma represents sundry income such as cleoning of sites, private work and fees for tems not
inchudfiod under senice charges.

2017 2018

EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS R R
Salaties and Wages 45416093 38,455,304
Annual bonus 2,944,805 2,230,296
Contributions for UIF, pensions and medical @ds 8,295,585 6,781,247
Houging Subsidy B83.662 62,200
Leave Reserve Fund 2,321,669 702,867
Long service awards 281,946 281,148
Cvortima 840,378 839,780
Post Employmant Health 718,360 601,840
Searce Skils Afowanco 7,569 3,301
Porformance bonus 1,078,808 1.031,547
Skits doviiopment kevy 491,149 350,456
Travel, motar car, lelophano, azsistanca and other slownnces 3,726653 2800216
Frivdsion fos Exd5rla piyimenl- LFO - 124873
Workmon's Compansaton 373,524 74 837
Total Employee Relatod Costs 59,175,182 54,543,120
Hunicipal Managor and a¥l ather Sanior Managers are appoinied an fxad leem cantracts,
REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONHEL
Remunerttion of the Municipal Manegor (M Or VS Vatala)
Annual ARemuneratian 1.810,510 1,464,100
Perfarmance Bonuses 204,874 186,340
Leave encashment 148,167 -
“Teleph i and athet 31,800 28,136
Contnbutians ta UIF, SDL, Bargaining councl 18,464 16,841
Total 2,011,785 1,603,217
Ramuperation of the Manager Services | Sorvicos - P Soho}
Annuzl Remuneration 1,208,458 1.098,69%
Performance Bonuses 152,804 105,860
Leave pngashment IBETL
Acling Allowanco 32504
Teleph i and athey 27,240 22,506
Conirtytinns lo UIF, SDL, Bargaming councll 12,61 12336
Talal 1,474,291 1,241,301
Rarmunoration of the Chiefl Financial Cfificer (GP da Jager)
Annual Remuneration 1,261,433 1,148,757
Performance Bonusas 160,546 145,951
Leawe encashment 170,546 -

and other 27,240 168,600
Contrbutions to UIF, SOL., Bargaining eouncd 14,307 13.517
Tatal 1,634,071 1,124,825
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NOTES TO THE FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS FCR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Reruneration of tho Manager IPED Sorvices (N Matuydwa) 27 2016
Aanual Remuncration 1,208,458 1,088,599
Perarmance Bonuses 193.804 48,236
p! 3 and other 27.240 12,500
Leave encashmenl 36T -
Acting plownnce 9,133 -
Cenyibutians o UIF, SDL, Bargaining counci 12247 15802
Total 1.£409,758 1,475,013
Romuraration of the Director and Human {0 Njiro}
Annuzl Remuneratian 1,208,459 1,088,595
Performance Bonuses 153,804 139522
Acling Alowance - 15,783
Leovo encashmant 198,187 -
b i and other 27.240 18,600
Centributions ta LHF, SO, Bargeining councd 15,216 13,886
Total 1,602,906 1,286,670
Ramuncration of the Diroctor Communtity Servicas (N Myezi)
Annual Remuneralion 1,208,099 1,008,539
Porfatmanca Bonuses 153,804 139,822
i and slher 27,240 18,600
Loave encoshment 135,347 -
Conwittions to UF, DL, Bargaining councd 14,436 13,149
Total 1,538,926 1,270,163
23 REMUNERATION OF COUNCILLORS R R
Mayor 760,798 778,830
Speaker 18,382 627,278
Exgeutive Gommiltes Members 2772844 2,703,673
Counciflors 7027131 6.775.005
Total Councilfors® Rermuneration 11,184,958 10,884,836
In-kind Banafitz

The Mayer and Speaker are lul-ime. The Mayor and Speaker are provided with affices and sccrclanalsuppon at the coat of
Ihe Cotnell, The Mayor his uae of a Councl owned veritle and o deiver for efficiat dulies.
COUNCILLORS

Executhm Mayar - N Nyukwana 768,739
Speaker - Kaklo DS 616,750
Exgtulive Commitics Member - Liri N- Chicf Whip 568,782
Exncu!.rm Cumm]!ims Cl¥s § Liwani (full ima exco} 582,155
i - T Kulashe {Hd ) {full me oxco) 583882
Exgcutive Ccmmnlccs Limba A (full Bna oxca) 520,281
Executha Commillees - K Nkaeela {(Ex-part lima exce member} 36,242
Exttulive Commitleas - K Nkasela {Ex-par time exco member) 303,378
Otner Counciiors - L Mool { Ex-Sec 73 char person) 35,307
Qther Councliors - Mopeln L (Soc 79 chair parson) 320,327
Ortinary Councidor- Dk N [ Partime Couclor] 28,055
Ordinary Councior- Dyonase Z § Part-tana Coucilar] 26,055
Qeedinary Councifior- Ziduli MM] Pant-tme Coucilor] 261,020
Ordinary Councior- Jordaan VB8 [ Parl-time Couclor} 28,055
Ordinary Councitor- Gadia M1 | Pari-Ume Couciior} 28,055
Ordinary Counciior- Mayuko ST [ Part-Uma Coucilar} 28,055
Qrdinary Councior- Nobaza P [ Part-fime Cosrizor} 27,838
Qettinary Councidor- Bobolyane CH | Part-time Coucilor] 261,020
Qreinary Counciior- Feter N[ Part-limo Couclior] 28,055
QOrdinary Councifor- Konl NF | Panl-tima Coucior] 261,020
Orclinary Councilor- Tekn ZH { Parttime Couedier] 28,055
Urdmnry Councilor- Dydymashe TR | Part-lime Coucitlor] 28,065
ry Councilor- Kamani B { Part-ime Coucifor] 28,055
ry CouncBor- Qhashiani N [ Parl-time Coudilor] 28,055
ry Counciior- Neficla TM { Part-lima Coucitor) 261,020
ry Counciior- Holann NB | Par-ime Coucitor] 28,055
ry Councilor- Kwatshang TW [ Parl-ima Coueslor 28,055
ry Councifor- bjexu K | Parl-tine Couciar) 261,020
Ordinary Councior- Kraga NN [ Parbime Couciger) 260420
Ordinary Countidor-Mkelsy ZW [Pad-time Coucifor) 28,055
Ordinary Councigor-Greying PF [ Part-Ume Couckior} 261,020
Ordingry Councilar-Papiso ZZ | Port-tmp Couchor} 28,055
261,020
Oretinary Counciior- Boklan SN | Part-ime Couctlar] 28.055
Ordinary Counciler- Zama SE [ Partlime Coucilor] 232,865
Crdinary Councizor- Falyela LA | Part-lime CoutiZor] 232,865
Qrdfinary CouncBar- Bongo S [ Part-Eme Coucer) 232,865
Ordinory Councior- FentR2Z [ Part-ime Couciior} 237,865
QOrdinary Councifor- Moshane ZG { Part-ime Coucifor] 292,965
QOrdinary Counciior- MondRa TF § Part-lima Coucilor| 232,965
Orainary Councifar- Mahola Z0 { Pard-Ume Coucilor} 232,865
Qrdinary Councifor- Qomoyi MS | Part-time CouciBer} 232,865
Ordinary Councifor- Mpkates! ¥ [ Par-ime Cocliorn} 232,965
Oudinary Councilar- bnvabi T} Parl-lima Couclior} 232,965
Ordinary Councilar- Mihandekl Fi | Part-lima Caucidor} 232,965
Qedinary Councifar- Tyuks NK [ Pan-time Coucifor} 232 865
Ordinary Councifor- Kama M | Part-tima Coucigor} 232,965
Ordinary Cowneitor- Oyiya MP] Part-time Coucior] 232.963
Qredinary Counciar- Pauii N [ Part-lime Couclior] 237 269
Ordinary Counciliar Njadu XH [ Parttime Couciior] 232,068
Ordinary Councitor Ngono M | Part-tmo CouciBor] 232,965
Qrdinary Councier- Nnona N | Par-tme Coucitor} 296,556
Cther payments 58.536
Gazallg amounls 11,184,558 -

Cartifical ing Officar
nRiff hal the remunesation ¢l uncssms ami in-kind bonefits are within tha upper Emits of the framaewerk cnmagnd in Suclmn 219 of the Canstiution, read with the
d LG o b Aclapd the Minster of Provincial and Loeal in o; with thig Acl.
. .
~

nod: Accounting Officar )

Page 56



24

5

F

27

3

DEST IMPAIRMENT

Trade R blaz fram non- =

Trade R bles from exchange
Total Contribution to DeblImpalmant

BAD DEBTS WRITTEN -CFF

Trade Recelvables from exchange transactions

Trade Recernbias fiom non-

CEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Property Plant and Equipment
nvestment Praperty
Intangile Assols

Tota! Depreclation and Amortisation
FINANCE CHARGES

Landfil site

Long senvice awards
Long-lerm |iabites
Post Employmant Heath

Totat finance chargos

BULK PURCHASES

Eloetricity
Tolal Bulk Purchases

OTHER OFERATING GRANT EXPENDITURE
Oporating grant cxpandiure per vete

Budget and Treasury
Communily Seniccs
Corporate Scvices
Councl

Electricy

Excoutie

iPED

Refuse

Ruoads Transport
Waler and Sanitation

Total Qperaling grant expenditure

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2047

2617 2016

{165,402} 1,008,424
2.492,750 3,302,011
2327344 4,200,435
4,648,942 -
430,154 4,128,144
20.520.613 2428477
7.999 5,507
26,235 33,707
20,563,847 22,457,691
684,414 -
125628 101,918
76,517 120,034
476.574 400,101
1,363,144 622,053
12,540,236 13480217
12,948,236 13,480,217
3832662 4,259,905
- 43,476

8,172,807 18,421,053

00,729 .

. 442,729

202950 206,750
2475448 5,522,845
14,583,595 28,906,458
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 207

2017 2016
GEMERAL EXPENSES R R
Administratian chargas - -
Advertisemants 338,250 670,490
Auditors Remuneration 3,783,504 3,858,284
Bank Chargos 200,988 256,550
Bcoks, Magazings & Pubsatinn 21,392 18,202
Claaning 158,285 467,670
Cenferences end Scminars 1.087.710 1154002
Congress Faa 39,755 18,630
Caonsuking and Professional feas 1,430,080 1,866,744
Consumaties 33, 71,851
Data Claansing 250,116 115,857
Drsaster Exponditure 323,181 605,069
Drivers License Cords 24,727
Elaciricity Senice Charges 162,388 405,639
Entertainment - 698,749
Figld Bond Project 708,828 1,200,370
Fleet Management 71628 15,858
FIMS Expanddure and Licences BAB6TD 761,521
Fuet and ol 1,704,954 1,298,791
tntarnal chaiges 237,231
Insurance 1,664,045 12897 877
Lease rentals on operating keasa 464,335 361.828
Licenae Fees 701,389 488,508
Marksting 447,554 BYEG
Material Stores 2.799.589 1,692,301
Hayor Cup 980,358 200,266
Medical Exams - 1,150
HNatwork Infrastructurs Improvement 30,391 301,037
Pauper Buria’s 29,830 19,860
Planl Hirg 195,000 51,200
PMS & IDP Comptance 384,985 477,804
Poficies 32,817 162,610
Postage 5438 7898
Printing and siationery 1,555,730 1,458,251
Projects 3.440,047
Protective Clothing 698,100
Fublic participalion 1,029,793
Rofuso Bags 338,300
Relocation Cast 57,600
Revanue Enhancement Strategy 135,116
Schaols
Security 2,953,988
Special Community Projects; oxample Youlh day 781629 1,568,593
Staff Tools Of Trade 279,058 -
Study Assistance - 200000
Subseripion and Membership fees 954,602 S77.618
Subsistence and Travel 2,881,391 2.486,531
Tetophons and fax 1,865,271 1757671
Traditianal L sadess Expenditure 173,444 74,980
Training 751,849 471,455
Transport and freight 828,725 617,933
Trawet - ocal £,538.408 4571.788
Vahuation Rell 62468
Ward Commitico coal 472,120
Welagss Day 325,162

General Exponsas
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EMALAHLEN] MURICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

CORRECTION OF ERRORS IN TERMS OF GRAP 3 AND RE - CLASSIFICATIONS
Harratives of the cotrections of errors

{i) During tha pravious yoir, Standard Bank has revarsed a payment made for telaphone cost paid to Vodacoem and the reversal was recognized os such,
With the July bank statemenl, # was found that the bank has eroneously reversed the amound with the result that the bank batance and Accumulaled Surplus wero
understated

{ii) Iwas found thal buk purchases from Eskom was incomaclly levisd by them for units soid in the wral arca, An ever payment was thus dona in the previous yoar and th
IO i now ratrospectively comectod with the raﬂowmg antrigs 1 {C1) Accumulated Surplus {Cumon! yoar} - Aulk Purchases R2 148 675 .65 (Ct) VAT R300815
and {D) from non Ti RZ 449431 .02

{Hl} Vehiclas proviousty incorecty do- recognised are now recagnised again with the foBawing ontriss - {Di}Property Plant and Equipment - Generil Vehiclas R182 823.93
{C1) Accumulated Depreciaton RD2 843 57 (T} Accumufated Surples -prior years RTT 984,29 1C1) Acoumulated Surphus -ourren! yonr (Dopreciation) R11 996.07

(Iv) Blangwae access rad was incomectly not capitsized last year and was errenpously afocaled 85 repads and maintenance. This ermor is now camectad with the lollowing
entrias; (D1) Propeny Plant ang Equipment - WIP Infrastructure -roads {C) Accumutated Surpus -cumant yuar RT4 690

(v) ROP houses worp praviously incamectly capitalized. This error &5 now relrospectiy comected with tho lofiowing enties | (D1} Accumulated Surphuz -prior years R14 145
{CY} Invesient Property R G5 000, Lend and Buldings R 74 145 250, {Df) Accumulated Deprociation -Land and Buidings R2 578 742,66 (Cl} Accumuisted Sumpius
yoars RZ 576 742.66, () Accumulaled Depmcmmn Land and Butdings (Ct) Accumutated Suiplus - current yoar Jdapreciation) R345 298 88 (ER) Ancumulated Surpk
prior years {1 A Dep! L Propertios R17 546,67, (D) Accumulated Surples -cumenl year {0 tation) (CI} O .
Invastment Propeny R2 50667

{vil Cotraction of a55ots not caphtafized with tho following entries @ (D) Propery Planl and Eauipment-Other Assets (CliAccumulated Surpaus -pricr
yeors R10 518, (01} Accumutated Surphus -prive yoasr {Ot) Accumulated Daprecistion -Cher Assots Re 356,50, (D) A et year (D i H
Accumulated Dopeaciation REZ24.00

[vil} Coreetion of assats incomeetly capitalzed with the folowing eatries @ { D) Accumuiated Surplus -prior yo2ars (Gt Property Plant and Equipment- Buiidings <ost
with R139 400 (DY) Accumulates Doprociation - Buldings , {G1) Accumutited Surplas ~-priat years R 28 B0 64 , (D1} Accumulated Depreciation-Buidings (CH
Accumutated Surphus -current yeor {Deprociation) R2 811.93

[viii In Enp with GRAF 17 B2 Ropaks and Maintanance mmds to bo chissified according 10 the nature of the expenditure incurred. An amount of R 7 039 652 was disclsed
saparsto fine Herm in the prior yoar, lhis has been ta the comect namely related Costs R 886 551, Contracted Sorvices R 5024 551, oth
Matenat /1070 708 2nd qeher expenditues R 37 887,

{ix} The total amount for bad debis impaiment was shown as ong ing item in e previous yoar, in the gurent year a sphit was done botwoen bad debis wnitten off
and debt impaiment contribulion ta the provision. In order 1o hiava CONE: Tgues derin the priar years amount
and the amount was spit between bad debis aclualy written off 2nd debt impagment can'lnbuticn 10 e provdsion.

2016 2055
R R

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
Balanca previousty repodad 409,432,506 406,169.906
Comection of emor -see note 30014} 123,889
Camectian of error -saa note 36.01{1) 214B.676
Comection of efrer -52a note 36.01{&E) 161,976 104976
Comection of emer -se0 nole 36.01{#) 11,398}
Comection of error -sso note 30, 0{v) 74,680
Carrection of emror -sae note 36.01{v) {14,210,290}) {14,210,2580)
Cormrection of emer -seo nole 30.01{v) 2,578,743 2,578,743
Comection of emer -350 note 30.01{v) 35,289
Comection of emor -see note 30.01{v} (17,547} (17.547)
Correction of eror -ses nola 36.81{v) (2,507}
Comection of emrer -seo nole 36.01{4) 10518 10,518
Carrection of enor -320 nole 30.01{1) {4,356} {4.356)
Correction of eor -zen nole 30.01{v) (524}
Cormection of emer -ee0 note 300144} {139,400} (139.400)
Correction of enor -see nate 30014 28,802 28.802
Correction of error -sea note 30 014d) sz
Restated halancn 30062016 400.462.231 304,518.352

2016 2015

R R

CASH AND CASH EQUAVALENTS
Balanca praviously reported 28,295,562 21,776,400
Correstion of eror -see nole 30014} 123,899
Routated balanca INDEZ016 28,419,461 31,776,400
VAT
Balanca proviousty reportad 6,228,350 2,144,284
Cerrcction of emor -s20 note 30 .01(4) {300.815)
Restated balanen 30/06/2016 6,027,535 2,344,204
RECEIVABLES FROM NOH EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Balance proviously reported 2,828,246 4,192 556
Cenection of erar -50e note 3601 {a) 2,449,437
Restalod balance 30/06/2016 5277737 4,192,506
FROPERTY PLAKRT AND EQUIPMENT
Balance praviously roported 408,287,626 388,475,477
Comection of oror -sea note 30.01 {6 Cost 182,824 162,824
Correction of prros -see noto 30.04 {8 Accumulsted Depreciation -82, 844 (80,848}
Comection of omor -sce nole 3¢.01{w) Costinfrastructure (WIF) 74,650
Comection of trar -s50e noto 30.01(v) Cost Land and Bufdings -14,145,290 (14,145,280}
Caomestion of crror -seo note 30.01{v) Accumutated Dapraciation 2.578.743 2,578,743
Comectan of erar -soo noto 30.01 (v} Accumuiated Deprecistion 345285
Camection of pror -sea nole 30.91{w) Cost 10,518 10,518
Comection of ciror -see nole 30.01 (v} Acsumulated Deprecistian (4,356} {4,3568)
Comectian of orror -see noto 30.01(w) Accumulzted Depreciation (624}
Carrection of erer -see note 30.01 (vi) Actemulated Oepreciaton {139.200) (139400}
Comeetion of eror -sco nolo 30.01 (wi) Accumulated Deprociation 28.802 28.802
Comoction of eror -sce noto 39.04(vi) Actumulated Depreciation 3812
Restated bafance 30/06/2016 157,129,600 376,506,170

Page 69



EMALAHLEN] MAUNICHPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2047

ap.o7 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Halanco pravicus!ly reportod 4,247 340 6,433,760
Carrection of error -sea noie 30.01(v) (65,000} {B5.000)
Comestion of emor -see note 30.01(v) (17,547 {17.547)
Comoetion of eror -500 nota 30.01{v) (£.507)
Restaled halance IDMGR0LG 4,162,287 6,351,213
2016 2015
30.08 STATEWENT GF FINANCIAL PERFORMANGE R R
SURPLUS PREVIDQUSLY REPORYED 3,262,630 -
Corraction of emor-sce note 30.01() - General Expenscs-Telaphone 123,839
Comeetion of errar-soe nate 30.01(8) - Buk Purchases 2,148,676
Cerrection of eror-see note 30.01(&} - Depreciation +11,995
Comection of pror-sea nola 30.01(k) - Repars and maintenancs 74,5090
Camection of gmor-seg noke 30.01{v) - Depraciation 345249
Carreciion of emor-gea note 38.01{v) - Depreciation {2,507
Comection of emor-see note 30.01{) - Depreciation {524)
Carrectian af eer-sae note 30.01{vd) - Depreciation 3Bz
5.943482 -

Restated batanco 30/06/2018
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Previously reported

Debt Impairmnent
Bad Debls Wrilieo-oft
Repais and maintenance

Now repaited

Debt Imparment

Bad Dobls Written-off
Contmeted Senaces
Employee related costs
Other Expendituro
Other matesials

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

RECONCILIATION BETWEEH NET SURPLUSHDEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR AND CASH GENERATEDAABSORBED) BY

OPERATIONS
SBuplueDehcr) far he yoat

Adjustments for;

DapreciationfAmortisalion

Logs on dispassl of property, plant and equipment
Cantibuted Assals

impaiment Loss

impaiment (Reversals)

Coentribution fromnto pravisions - Non-Curmren!

C ion fromie - Noa-Cureant - Ex i
Gontnbytion remfle. provisons - Non-Cumnnt - Acluanal gains
Contribution to provisions - curent

Ci ] Hiong - current - fiture incurred
Doblimpairment

Bad Debts written - off

Operating kaase income / {8xpanses) accrued

Operating Surphes/{ Daflicit) before changes i working capital

Changas in wosking capital

Increase!{Decreaze) in Payables from exchange ansactions
Increase!{Decreaso) in Unspent Conditonal Gevernment Granls and Reccipls
IncreaseiDecreasa) in Unpaid Condiional Govarnment Granls and Rocoipls
Increase!{Decranse) in Taxes

{increasey¥Decrease in inventery

(I seyCecteasa in R from and non: 5
Cash rhed) by op
Bacantnued Opetatons

CASH AKD CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and ¢ash equiidents included in the cash flow statemant compriso tho fobowing:

Cat invasiments Depasis - Nolo 16
Cash Floats - Nole 16
Bank - Note 16

Total cash and cash equivalonts
RECOHCHIATION OF AVAILABLE CASH AND INVESTMENT RESOURCES

Cash and Cosh Equivaionts - Note 32

Loss:
Unsgent Committed Condilionat Grants - Nole 7

Rescurces availahle for working capital mauimmants
Allocatad 10¢

Current Emplayoe Bencfis

Mon-Cument Provisians

Rescurces avaitabie for working capital rnquimmants
GTILISATEON OF LONG-TERM LIABILITIES RECONCILIATION

Long-term Linbatios - Note 2
Used o finance propedy, plant and equipmonl - ot cost

Cash sel asids for the repayment of lang-temm Eabiities
Cash i d for repay of long-term

Long-term Eshitlies hove boen uldzed in with the M { Finanee

Page 7%

2016
R

8,526,579

7.015.692
15,546,271

4352435
4,122,144
5,024,551
886,551
37,887
1.G70.703

15,546,271

21,511,479

2617 2018
R [
1,665,548 5243879
20,563,845 22467,631
1,244,154 8831118
(36,664} (259,000}
- (635,644)
2,384,932 410,761
(331,995} (160.003)
(1,278,548} (154,568}
8,715,804 (4,956,253}
(5,145,573} 4,539,347
2,327.348 4,398,435
5,072,005 4,128,144
4,266 (5.330)
33,192,214 25338415
{11.280.735} 2,095,308
(.797.964) 3,861,889
(356,942} 808,741
(1,691,866}
(5,434,784} {3.823,157)
(1.999,179} 1,247,833
21,811,479 47,432,783
- {2.265,964)

45,167,639

10,260,055 28,023,440
300 20,252
2,873,642 2,315,770
13,133,098 28,449,481
13,133,898 28,419,461
13,133,858 28,418,461
{891,365) 1,157,442
1891.365 || 1157442
44,025,364 27.262.019
9032174 T.544 B44
+1.210331 10,525917
(5,217,152 9,191,258
285,485 640,349
£205,485)

{548,340}




EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2018
UHAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DISALLOWED R R
354 Unautharised oxpenditura
Reconciiztion of unauthonsed expendiure:
Opening balance 21,573,064 -
Unautherisod expenditure for the yoor - capital - 8,054,834
¢ : P for the yaar - perating - 13,478,230
Witten off by council (21,573,064)
1 ; iture awaiting it - 21,571,064
u i on voles is mainty due to depreciation and dobt impainment chargas
Disciplinary slopsieriminal proceedings
on apprvod op )
and capitat budget. Wone, roport has been presentad o Councd
2017 2017 2017 2047
R R R R
(Actual) 4 )
Unautharised oxpanditure currand year . aparating
Budget and Treasury Olfice 36,885,148 36,245,508 (60,358} -
Community and Soctal Senvices 26,257,959 27174994 (906,956) -
Corparalo Services 18,723,166 18,763,159 {45.093} .
Executive and Counc 43,624,748 34,060,391 (435,643} -
IPED 5.639,995 6429418 (789.424) -
Technical Services 65,880 008 71.262.558 {5.282.548 -
187,121,023 194,541,545 {1,520,922) -
UinnlIhsHsEY E¥fidnd iy edtignt yosr . eapial 08 201y 2017 wtr
R R R R
(Actualy dget) (Vari ) }
Budget and Treasury - - - -
Community and Social Services 6,907,909 6,808,191 (282) -
Corporate Senvices. 2,988,942 2,883,000 (1.058)
Executive and Council 4,860,724 5,000,000 (265} -
1PEQ 1,113,580 1,114,458 (867) .
Technical Sarvices 20, g 20,834,452 (552) -
16,048,076 36,347,100 3,024) -
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EMALAHELENI MUNICIPALITY
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

UNAUTHORISED, IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DISALLOWED (Continued) 2017 Hald

Frullioes and wastoful expantitum

Reconciadan of fruitless and wastelul expenditurg:

Opening balance 89,296 68,040
Frutiass and wasteful expenditure the yoar 1263 18,446
Wriiten ol by councd {€0.286) {17.183)
Recoveted Fruitiess and wastefu) expandiure tho year )
Fruiess and wastelu) expanditure awalling further ackion 1,26) 69,295

Incidont Disciplinary stapa/criminal proceedings

Interest was paxl 10 Eskom ond Tekom invastigalad and recovernd afler yearend 1,263 1,283

Intorest and ponalties wers pawd on Eskom and Tetiom actounts wiltan aff

Interest was paid to Eskom and Telkam prior ynar Noig

W kkispana-salary pard incamectly Ta bo recovemd - £6.033

1,263 65,256

irveqular expondituro

al imegular
Opaning batanco 27476747 73458943
lvegular oxpanditure for tho yaar 1,850,629 7.217.046
kregular expandiura for the prics ysar
Written off 2T.ATE 74T 653,239,242)
tregular axpenditure awaiing further action 1,850,629 21,476,747
Incident |Disclplinary stepsfcriminal procoedings
SCM procedunts nat foliowtd with inactive SCM Roguiations 37 con!1 Ta bo invastigated 1850828
SCM procodurps not foliowod current year Wriltan off 17.785,486
Litaba Basag! investman! Written off 1604746

ifan aff o a6Y.45%

MafoneUmkhiwe Consiruchon JV
SCM procoduras nol foliowad prar yoar

SCM procodunes nat folfowad-Edzan Prop Dovalopars 4362655

M procodures not fakiowod-Litabna Basads invasiments Wrfton aff 2.862.391
1,850,629 21,476,749

Matariaf Lessos

Elogtrizity distribution lossos

Umts purchased {Kwh) 10,546,184 12,985,655

Units soid {Kwh) 5,538,883 7.434,124

Unis lost during distribution (Kwh) 2.027.768 5351531

Pereontage lost during distibution 26.81% 42.75%

ADDITIORAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT

Conlributions 1o ergavized lozat governmant  [MEIEA 125 {1i(h)] - SALGA CONTRIBUTIONS

Opening balance - -

Councd subscriptions 620,560 500,00¢

Armount paii - cumenl year {620,560} {500,000)

Amount paid - provious years .

Balanzo unpaid {included in craditars) . -

Audit fees - [MEMA 125 {1)(c]

Opening halanco - -

Cusrant yoar oudit fee 3.783,504 3.058.284

External Audit - Auditor.General I 3,783,504 [ 3.050.284 |

Amount paid - uneal year 3,641,480} {3,850.284)

Balanee vnpadd {included in craditors) 142,815 -

VAT - [MEMA 125 [1){c]

Qpening batange {3.951,047} {2,093,628}

Amaunts recetved - cument year 446 065 7.271,188

Amounts receivod - pravioys years 3,991,047 1.262.752

Amounts chiened - current year {3,301,5917) {10,391 357}

Closing balance - {Receivabla) f Payable (2,855,849} {3,851,047)

VAT i payoablelreceratie on the cash basis. VAT is only poid over 1o SARS once cash is receved from deblors and anly

<laimed from SARS onco paymant is matio o ereditors,

PAYE SOL and UIF - [IAFIA 125 {1}{c}}

Opening batance - 948,831

Cuffent year payrot doductions and Councll Contributians 16,346,473 8,379,047

Amount paid + currant yaar 9.137.027) {10323,870)

Balance vnpald (Included in creditars) 1,211,445 -

Panslon and Bedical Ald Deductions - {MFMA 125 {1){c

Opaoning balanco

Curmenl yoar payro¥ and Councl Conbbul 15,042,714 12,478,870

Amgunt paid - current yoar (15.042,714) (12,478 BT0)

falanca unpaist (Includad in creditors) - .
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EMALAHLEN] MUNICIPALETY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

ADDITIOHAL DISCLOSURES tH TERMS GF MUNICIPAL FINAKNCE MANAGEMENT ACT (CONTINUED)

Ceuncillers apoar consumer aceeunts - IMEMA 124 [1){b)1

Tho fobowing Counc@ors had amear acoounts for moro than 30 days as at 30 June:

Tolal G Arraar A 1

Clher non-compliance (MFIMA 125{2)[n})

Terms of Section 85{2) o) of the Municipal Finance Monagement Act, 2003 {Act No 56 of 2003) {MFRA).
Some Craditors ware not paid within 36 days.

Hon-Complinnce with Chapter11 of tha Municipai Finance Manaqemnnt Act

In torms of soction 36 of tha Minicipa! Supply Chain Managemen! Regulations any dawiabon from the Supply Chain Managemont

Pty noods 1 bo d by tha Manager and noted by Council

Deviations fmpractcats 16 loliow SCM procedures) - appraved by Municipal Manager
Deviations {Soks supplior] - spproved by Munkipal Manager

CAPITAL COMMITIENTS
{ommitmants 1a respeck of capitat exponditire”

Approved and contractad lor

Infrastruclure
Community

Approved but not yet contracted for
Totat

This expeadilure wi be financed from:
al Loang
Capital Replacement Resenve
Govommont Grants

Total
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2017 2016
R R
Outstanding Quiskanging
more thaa $0 maore than 80
days diys
Total Suppliars Amount
¥ 2,853,500
3 824852
3,678,432
R R
29.207.344 4680800
15,282,550 4,630,800
13,824,785 -
29,207,344 4,690,800
20,207,344 4,600.63D
22,207,344 4,690,800




EMALAHLEN] MURICIPALITY
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2047

FIRAHNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

TFhe acthilies of the municipatity oxpose it to o variely of financial fisks, including market risk (comprising fair vahie interest rate
risk, cash fow inlernat rale nisk and prce ssk), credd risk and Equidity rsk. The municipaily's owerall risk management
programne focuses on the unpradictabty of financial markets and sacks to minimise polential adverse offects on the
municipaty’s inancial performanca.
{a) Forcign Exchangae Currancy Risk

The municipzity did not engage in any foreign cumency transaction.
{b) Price risk

The munipakly is nat axposed 1o price nisk.
{c) Intorest Rato Risk

As lhe X has signt Enterest-b g kabiities, the entity's incoma and aperating cash flows aro substantially
dependent on changes in market interest rates,

‘Tho mumicipatly anabyses its potontiol exposute (6 inlerest ralz changas an a continuous basis, Different scenanios are
simulated which Inckide refinancing, mrewst of cumont postiens, aftemathn fnonging and hedging. Based on thoze
scanarios, tho eality calcultes tho impact that a changa in interest rales wil havo on the surplug/daficit for the yesr. These
seonanos ara anly simulated for §abiitins which constiute the majosty of interest bearing fabites.

Tha municipalty ¢id not hedge against any interest rata risks during the curreat yeat.
The potential impact on tho enlity's surplus/dafict for the year due Lo changaes i inlerost mltes wers as follow:
1% {2012 - 0.5%) Incraase in inlorest rates

0.5% (2012 < D.5%} Betrtse Wrirterost 1ates

(d} Credit Risk

=

Credit sk & tha risk that a counter party 10 a financial or non-financizl assat vl fad o discharga an ob¥gation and cause the
municipatity to incur a financil loss.

Credit rigk constst mainfy of cash deposits, cash oquivalents, trade and other recoiveblas andg unpaid conditional grants and
subsidios.

are lased net after p ions arg made for mpagment and bad debis, Trade debtors comprzo of a farge
nember of ratepayers, dispersed across different soctors and geographical aroas. Ongeing credit pvaluations are performed
on the fnancial condition of theso deblors, Credit sk periaining Lo trade and other deblors is conskiored lo bo mederale
due the diversified nature of debloss and immatenial nature of ndhddual balances, In the case of consumer doblors the
municipalty cfoctively has the right 1o teminato senvices to customers but in practice this is dificult to apply. In the casa of
dablors whose accounts become in amears, Coungl sndeaveurs Lo colioel such accounts by “evying of penalty chorges”™,
“demand for payment”, “resliction of servces™ and, as a st resor, "handed aver for eolinetian®, whichever procedure is
applcablz in tems of Councits Credi Cantred and Debt Cofoction Pokcy

Tho credit quakly of receivables are assessed on indridual deblors basis. The accounts are then impaitod on a individual
basis based on the risk it quakly with thatindh | account

All rates and senvices are payeble within 30 days from invgice date. Refer ta nate 13 and 14 for all balances outslanding
longer than 30 days. Theso balances rapresonl &% debtors at yeor end which defavtied oo ther crdit terms. Also cefer to
note 13 for halances included in Lhat were iz for tha pericd undor rovew.
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2017 18
097 2018
R R
21,586 180,673
{10.780) (80.236)
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EMALAHEENI MUNICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTIRUED)

Balances past duo nol impained:

217 2017 2016 2016
% R’ Y R
Mon-Exchange Recerables
Raloz and other recaivablos 100.08% 1,656,701 100.00% 5277735
Electricity 2132% 1,211,606 41.93% 3,132,116
Rafuse -33.47% (8.312.505) -69.05% (5,157,721)
Other 172.18% 5,784,299 127.12% 0425236
100.00% 5,883,400 100.00% 7,469,630
No reccivables aro pledged as securily for fnancial Sebglies.
Due ta the shart lenm nature of receivables the camyéng value disckased in neta 13 and 14 of the financisi statements is an
inn of it fair value, Interast on swverdue balances are inchuded 8l prime konding rata plus 155 wherg applesble.
The provision for bad dobts could be s¥ocated betweon the different classcs of deblors 25 fobows
2017 2017 2016 2016
k) R % R
Hon Exchange Roceivsblos
Rates and cther receivabies 100.00% 13,750,525 100.00% 11,257,775
Exchangn Recenabios
Eleetricky 408,894 2.54% 1,063,603
Rafuse 9ETTIT §2.57% 3B.774,125
Other 1,871,574 4.89% 2,050,423
42280485 100% ICTERED
An amaunt of R 5 079 086 dobt was writtsn of
“Tho entity anly deposis eash with major banks wilh high quality credit standing, An amount of R100 000 is pledge as
security on cal dopesits with Standard Bank. Akhough the eredit risk pertaining to cash and cash cquivalents arg
1o be low, the i oxpasure are gk below.
The enlty has no non-cument investment franseclions,
“Tho banks ultised by tha municipalty for curtent and non-curent nvastments aro a tsled on the JSE. The erodit quakty af
thase institulions aro ovaluated based on ihok raquired SENS relaasos as well as other media reports. Based on al pubbc
ecammunications, tho financial sustainablity s ovalualed (@ bo of high gustty and the eradit sk peraining to these
inslitulions sre consuderad 1o be low.
The risk pertaining o unpaid grants and idios arg i 10 b very kv, Amounts are receivable from
nationat and provinciat gowvemment and there are no expectaions of counier pory default,
Al bios ara indhiduaty annuatty at of Financial Position date for inparmant,
2017 2016
Financiol agsols exposed 10 credit risk at year end are as fofows: R R
fror 5,682,400 7,469,630
T from 1 1,856,701 5277738
Cash and Cash Equivaionts 13,132,858 28,419,451
20,474,558 41,166,027
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EMALAHLEN] MURICIPALITY
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

FINAHCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{e) Liquldity Risk

Prudent kquidity risk managemant imphes maintsining sufficient cosh, the avafabily of lunding through an adequats
amount of committed credit acitios. Due to the dynamic nature of the undething Business, the treasury maintuing foxdhiity
in funding by mainlaining ovaiabity under eredit Enas,

The onty's risk to Equidily iz 0 resuft of the funds avolabla lo cover future commitments. Tha entity manages kquidity rizk.
ihraugh an ongoing raview of kiture commitments and credit facities,

The tablo bolow analyses the enlity's fnanciat Enbigtios intg refiwvant maturify growpings basad on the remaining pariad atthe
financial ynar and lo the contractual matunty date. The amounts disclosed in tho tabla aee the contmetusl undseaunted
cash flows. Balancss dus within 12 months equal their camying batances as the impact of discountiog is not significant,

iess than 1 Between 1and 5 Botween 5 and
year years 1¢ years Cvar 10 Yoars
2017
Long Tem Eabfities - Finonco Lease Linbiity 320,076 - -
Capilal ropaymenls 235485 .
intarest 24,551 -
Long Term Exbiitios - Hae purchase Lease Lisbitty - - -
GCapital ropayments - - - .
Interest - - - .
Trade and Othor Payables. 19,381,282 - -
Unspent conditional government grants and roceipls 840, - -
20,481,868 . M M
Loss than 1 Betwean 1and 5 Bohween 5 and
year yoars 10 years Dver10 Yoars
2mE
Long Torm Kabitios - Finance Lease Liabdity 352,880 320076 - -
Capitat repayments 279,801 295 485 - -
Interest 73.089 24,591 - -

Long Term Esbistios - Hie purchase Leasa Lishity
Capital repaymen's

Interost
Trada and Other Payablos 20,331,009 -
Unspont conditionat govermmant grants and raceipts 1,157,442

21,067,833 320,016 -
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FINAHCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In aceordance with GRAP 104 the financisl instruments of the municipakty are classified a5 foBows:

Tho f3ir vatug of

the

Einancial Aszots

Investmants
Fixed Deposts
Recaivables
Receh from
from
Other Receivables
Governmant Subswies and Granls
Shos-term Investment Deposils
£al Daposits
Bank Balances and Cash
Bank Balancas
Cash Floats ang Advancaes

SUMMARY OF FINAHCIAL ASSETS

Financial ingtruments at amorised cost
At amartised cost

Financial Lfability
{.ong-tormn Liabilitns

Capitaiscd Lease Lisbidy
Hira Purchase
Payables from exchange lransactions

Trade Payablos
Thid party poyables (Payrol}

Payments raceived in advanca-pro paid cloctricity
Retentions and Guaranlees

Sundry Deposits

Sundry Credilors

Qlhar Payablps

Govemmesnt Subsiiios and Grants
GCurfent Partion of Long-lerm Liabilitios
Annuily Loans

Caplialised Loase Liabiity
Hirg Purchase

SUMHARY OF FIRANGIAL LIABILITY
Fmaneial instruments al amortised cost

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

with ESKOM

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2017

costs as sefiacled below.

Classification

EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

2017
R

Fimantial instruments at amortised east -

Financizd instriments at amortised cost
Financial instruments at amortised cost

Financial instrrments at smonised cost

Financial instruments at amortised cost

Financia! instrumenis at amotised cost
Financial instruments at amartized cost

22.165,964 41,166,827
22,165,954 41,166,827
Clagsification
Financial instuments at amorised cos! - 295485
Financil ivstruments ol omartised cost - 0y
Financial mslruments at amontised cost 14,122,334 16,063,803
Financial instrumants al nmorlised cost 1,343,359 46,145
Financizl instruments at amortised cost 175,442 210486
Financial mslnuments at amortisod cost 3.803.872 4,134,813
Finangial instruments at amortised cost 35,520 21,540
Fmancizl mstruments at amonised cost 56,206 84,608
Financial bnstruments at amartisod cost 800,500 1,167.442
Financial instuments at amorlised cost - -
Financial instruments al smartised cos) 295,485 279.801
Financiol instumonts at amorised cost - 3,063
20,632,719 22,197,286
20,632,719 22,307,286

5,683,400
1656701

1.691.866
10,260,055

2,873,642
300

2018

1.465,630
5277736

28,023.440

2,375,710
20,252

22,165,954

£1,166,827

and tapping from the Municipal network by ESKOM. A correetion was made

during the cument year and aew engagements have staried . The outcomae and what would yiold from itis #1 [o be determined,

M-KIND DOMATIONS AND ASSISTANCE

HNang

PRIVATE PUBLIC PARTHERSHIPS

Ceuncil has not enteted into 8y privale puble pastnerships during he fnanciaf yoar.
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EMALAHLENI MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 2047

The municipaliy is baing sued by Mr Kuyane for demagas whercby the elamant altegoedly suffored consilutional damages.

The municipatily is being suad by BL Pathu for d suffared due to by the i in fa&ng to maintain and
monitor the stucture of the dam wal and the dam outiet af Hogsett Dam

The Munaicipalty is being sued by D S O'Rely for damages suffered dug o neghgence by the municipakty in faging to maintain
and moniter the structure of the dam waSand dam outlet of Hogzstl Dam

Summons was sued against Emalablen Municipality by W Mkuyana 3,191,000

Ex Gratia Graluitics are paytbia regarding contracts for See. 56 Managers on termination of condract,

An urgen! inlardict was issued and oblained against by Lakhazzs C ion 1o interdict it inter aka from
eancluding any contract with a third pady. The financial impact of the matter is unknown at Lhis stage,

Claims against Cauncit 3,191,000

2016

15,000

120800

100,600
3,191,000

1,261,432

4,6ET,432

Inalithe sbova cages A possivl obkgation ko pay for tho ovonls rermaia al 30 June 2017, buluncanaiaty prevads of the acual time of tha oulfiaw of funds,

COMTINGENT ASSETS
A fraud caso against amplayees amounted to R332 1B8.24 i in tho process of investigntion and mitigatian, 322.387
Cisims by Counci 322,167

Ies thits case, possitla recovery of funds remain at 30 June 2017, butuncerainly provals of the actual tme of the inflow of funds.
RELATED PARTIES

Key Management and Counciiors receivo and pay for services on the same terms and condions as other ralepayers §
fesidonts,

The rates, senice charges and other chamges are in ackamance with approved tanifs that were advertised lo the public. Nobad
debt expenses have been recognized in respect of amounts owed by reinted pardics.

Ralated Party Loans

Nong
C of key l
The ofkey is sel aut in note 22 tc ths Annual Financisl Salements,

Other related parly transactions

Tha foliowing entities existed during the yoar whero Councifors or stafl have an interest:

Amaunt of Paymonts,
Souncilior/Staff Hombor Entity Transactions madn
F.Greying Universa! Garaga 445,776 445776
HM. Zidul Khazimia Hokiings (Ply) Ltd 174,035 112,650
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DISCONTIHUED OPERATIONS

ERALAHLENI MURICIPALSTY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Tha Municipaily actad as Water Service Pravider (WSP) for the pravisian of water and sanitaon servicas an behalf of the
Water Senice Authonly, Cheis Hani Districl Municipality. Tha Water Service Authanty iesobod 1o nesume full sccountabifly for

the Revenue functions as from 1 July 2014,

Tha offect of Disconlinued Operations on Lhe Statemaont of Financlal Position is as foltows:

Liagilitles assoclated with Discontinued Oparations

Employeo Banefils

Post Retirement Banefils - Refor 1o Nole 3.4

Long Senies Awards - Refor to Nate 3.2

Total Hon-curnent Employoe Benefil Liabilllies

Post Rotiroment Banofits

Balance 1 July

Contrution for the yoar

fnterest Cost

Exponditure for the year

Acluarial LossH{Gain}

Recovord

TFolal posl retirement benefits 30 June

Long Servico Awards
Balance 1 July

Contribution for the yaar
Interest Cost

Expanditure {or the yaar
Actuanal Loss/{Gain)
Recgverod

Total long service 30 June

TOTAL NON-CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Balanee 1July

Contrbutan for the year

trieresi cosl )

Expendtura for the yaar

Actuariol Loss/(Gain}

Recovored

Total employee benaofits 30 June

CURRENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Cument Portion of Post Relremant Bengfils - Nolo 5
Cuttent Partian of Long-Sencee Pravisions - Note 5
Provision for Stoff Loave Nolo §

Stalf Bonuses acoried Naloe 5

Total Current Employes Banefits

The In current benefits is

ELrvision for Stafl Losve
Batanco at beginning of year
Cantrbution 1o eurrent partion
Expenditure incurmed
Recavored

Batanta at end of yoar

Shaff Benuses acerund
Ratance at beginning of year
Conlrdulion 1o curent portion
Expenditure incurred
Recevercd

Balanco at end of yoar

wilh bi i e)

Tolal Liabifities

2017 2016

1.147.585

{1.147.585)

237,027

{237.02%)

1384612
- (1,364,612)

{71957}
(672,161}
(337,108

as follows: Note 5

(672.181
- [672181)

(427,104
- [137,108)

(2,265.864)
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